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.Lete from the Missienary Socity of

the Metlodist Church to the Su5er-

intendent.General/offIndian Afairs.

ThaoSTo, May, 188.
In accordance with an understandng reached at an inter-

viýw on the 27th of March lat, whib the Premier and yourself
vers good- enough to grsnt to a deputation representing the

issionary Society 9 f thMethodist Church, we have the honor
to submit a meroraýidutu of the points referred to in the con-
*ersation which then took place, and certain statements and
evidence in support thereof, so that the Government may h4ve
a clear iunderstandirig of the matters of'which we complain.

It is n , in the tiret instance, to mention briefly how
that state of a airs came about which rendered necessary an
appeal to the Government. It has ben known to us for a
number of years pastthât somewhat strained relations existed
between the agents of the Indian Department in Briti4h
Columbia, and some of the. missionaries of the Methodist
Church, and we feel constrained to say that from some of the
agents,at leastour missionaries have received but scaut courtesy.
We had naticed froin time to time brief references in the reports
of some of the agents containing reflections upon missions and
missionaries that we thought were not justified by the. facts,
and which seemed to manifest an unfriendly spirit toward the
agents of our Church. This became more marked when a
Commission was appointed by the British Columbia. Govern-
ment to investigate eertain matters connected with the Indians
on the Pacifie coast. At the sittings of that Commission, wit-
nesses were permitted to go entirely out of the way to make
charges of the most gross and libellous description against
missionaries, and this without any remonstrance or reproof
from the Commissioner. At a later date, a joint commission,
representing the Dominion and the British Co1tuinbia Govern-
ment, was appointed. A number of Indian villages-on the
coast and elsewhere were visited, and in due time a report was
published. This report contained observations which were

I.



evidently designed toreflect unfavorably upon certain mission-

aries of- the' Methodist Chureh, and their influence among the
Indians. Furtherùore, we have been informed that aprivate

report from this Commissioebabeen forwarded to theDepart-

ment, in which mneh stronger language has been used and more

damsging statements made touching some of the missionaries
Tor several years our missionaries have patiently borne this

undesirable state of affairs, and it was only when the.damaging

and, as we believe, undeserved statements of the agents and

Commissioners were becoming somewhàt notorious, it was felt

that the issue could be no longer ignored. Accordingly, the

subject wasbrought, in the first instance, before the Annual Con-

ference of the Methodist Church in British Columbia, and frotn

that body à memorial was forwarded to our General Missionary
Board. After.carefully eonsidering the memo.rial and hearing
statements in support of it, th Board decided :that in justice

alike to the- nssionaries and the Government, a careful in-

vestigation mug be made, and the real facts of the case brought
to light. The result of this investigation up to the present

time is a'mass of evidence, which, taken on its face, reveals a

sad tale of unfair treatment of the Indians on the part of

Government agents, and of undeserved. reproaches cast upon
missionaries of the Methodist Church.

Itis matter of common notoriety that a dissatisfied and

restless feelihg has existed-among many of the ·Indians of the

Pacifie Coast, and in-variuswys _ndýroug.h various chan-
neLs, certain missnr isoth Methodist Church- have been

accused of causing the trouble; and we have reason to believe,
that reports of this description received by the Government

have greatly influenced their policy, especially in relation to

Indian missions of the' Meth~dist Chureh. As regards any dis-
satisfaction thaf exists among the Indians,-we can, after care-

ful inquiry, emphatically deny that it has been caused by the

teaching or-influence of our missionaries. On thé contrary,
we affirm, and are-prepared to support it by ineontrovertible

testimony, that somte of the very missionaries who have been

accused of eausing trouble have, on mañiy occasions, put them-

selves to great inconvenience, exposed themselves to «erionus

danger, and even to death, in order to uphold the authority of
the law, and to persuade the Indians to be submissive thereto.

Frbm the evidence that bas come before 'us, we are convinced

that the trouble among the Indiana bas been caused chiefly by
two things--fîrst, a policy, on the. part of the Goverrinpent,
which the Indians, rightly or wrongly, believed to be unmjust
and unfair; and secondly, the partial conduet and broken

promises of agents of thé Government.
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It has been represented by agents of the Government that
the Indians at etain villages, mo're especially at Fort Simp-
son and on the Naas River, have refu'sed to receive a Govern-
ment agent, and have refused to come under the provisions of
the Indian Act. And it has been further represented that this
antagoni4tie attitude on the part of the Indians is due to the
teaching and influence of the Methodist missionaries at the
villages referred to. In regard to this we affirm, that no such
teaching-has been given and no such influence exerted by mis-
sionaries of the Methodist Church; but that the antagonism
has arisen from- the fact that the Indians have seen, that, in
some cases at least, where agents have been sent, the condition
of the people is made worse instead of better; and in the Chris-
tian villages of Fort Simpson and Greenville, not to speak of
others, there is an intense dread lest the coming of the agent
would result in the breaking down of moral restraint and the
restoration of old heathen practices which the people have en-
tirely abandoned. So far as the people at Port Simpson are
concerned, they are intensely desirous tò have municipal govern-
ment established among them, st that they may fashion their
institutions and/enforce their laws after the nianner of white
men, instead of being under the arbitrary and. as they fear,
unjnst control of a virtually irresponsible Indian agent. It
bas notVscaped the notice of the Christian Indians that in the
Report' of your Department- for 1888 (Part 1.,,p. 201), the
Government, agent institutes a comparison, very much to their
disadvantage, between them and some pagan Indians who'still
continue the abominable potlach, herding in common, and 6ther
immoral heathen practices. These latter are spoken of as beirng
more "respectful and obedient " than the Christien Indians-a
circumstance thatmay be due to the fact that their village had
been shelled by a Govemnent gunboat not long before.

Our Indians at Fort Simpson, and the Naas al:so,.feel that
injustice is done them by other disparaging remarks in the
same report For instance, the Kincolith h-idians are freefy
lauded at their expense. They consider -this unfair, inasn-eh.
as,·while they have always respected the law and the rights of
others, it is notorious thqt these 'same Kincolith Indianis, not
long before the date of ths Report, had violently interfered
with white men· and their boats, and prevented them from
going to their property in the neîghborhood; thàt they had
fired on an Indian and his family approaching in their boat,
and, during the preceding sumomer, had elso interfered with the
Deputy Fishery Commissioner, in'the prosecution of his official
duties.



There is no doubt that the unfortunate position of

THE LAND QUESTION

is at the foundation of ai great part of these difficulties. In
various official reports, and in the Report of the Joint Domin-
ion and Provincial Commission of 1887, it has been freely
charged that it ha been at the instigation of the Methodist
missionaries that the Indians have put forwtrd their elaims to
the land. A reference to a few dates and facts will show how
unfounded this is.

Our missionaries- first visitèd the north-weât coast iix 1874.
We find that in 1850, 1851, and 1852, Governor Douglas made
no less than fourteen different purchases of tracts of land from
various tribes of Indians. In 1858, a memorial to the Colonial
Secretary from the Aborigines' Protection Society set forth
that ".the Indians are keenly sensitive in regard to their own
rights as the.aborigines of the country, and are equally alive
to the value of the gold discoveries," and again, that "the In-
dians possess an intelligent knowledge of their own rights,
and appear to be determined to maintain them by all the means:114 in their power" In a despatch to the Colonial Secretary, of
March 25th, 1861, Governor Douglas says: "As the native In-
dian population of Vancouver Island have distinct ideas of
proprin land, and mutually recognize their several exclu-
at*~sessory rights in certain districts, they would not fail to
regad the-occupation of such portions of the colony by white
settlèrs, unless with the full consent of the proprietary tribes,
as pational wrongs; and the sense of injury might produce a
feeling of irritatioi-against the settlers, and perhaps disaffe-
tion to the Governmyat, that would endanger the peace. of the
country." This desp-atch transmitted a petition froum the House
of Assembly asking for aid from the Home Goverument ý"in
extinguishing the Indian title to the publie lands in the
coiony."

The Privy Council of Canada, on November -4th, 1874,
adopted a memorandum of the Minister of the Interior, in
which he says: " To the Indian the land question far trans-
cends in importance all others, and its satisfactory adjustment
in British Columbia will be the first step toward allaying the
widespread and growing discontent now existing among the
native tribes of that Province."

During his visit to British&plumbia, in 1876, Lord Dufferin

very pointedly called attention to the unsatisfactory way in
which the Indians were being treated, and wapned the white
people of the almost inevitable consequences of such a policy.

The first MethQdist missionary who visited the north-west



coast was the Rev. W. Pollard, in February, 1874. On his
return, he stated that "the Indians were much troubled over
reports about their lands." (See statement of Rev. T. Crosby,
Appendix, p. 2, and statement of Rev. A. E. Green, Appendix,
p. 14.) Mr. Crosby went there in June, 1874, and "found the
feeling and apprehension on the subject very strong."

Mr. Green says (p.,14): "I came to Naas River first in the
spring of.1877, and.was advised to look out and pre-empt a
piece of land to erect mission buildings on, and to use for a
boys' industrial school. But I found the idea of ownership so
strong among the Indians that I had to give that project up.
I soon found that this feeling was general." He goes on to
mention other facts, showing how fully the Indians were im-
bued with their rights to the land.

These references are more than sufficient to show that our
missionaries were not the instigators of the claims of the Indians
regarding the land. The fact is, that the Government agents
first led the Indians to believe that their claims were acknow-
ledged, and would be respected, hence the great dissatisfaction
when a contrary policy was carried out. At Port Simpson
especially, the Indians were encouraged in such hopes by the
agent ; and later, when Land Commissioner O'Reilly visited
that place, they presented their remonstrances and protests in
view of the previous promises to them. But notwitstanding
this, surveys were ordered, and these were carried out without
any explanations, such as might have relieved the minds of the
Indians and quieted théir apprehensions- So far ai we can
learn, there appears to have been no attempt to conciliate them.
The excitement, however, became so great that a Commission
was appointed to go up the coast and inquire into these
matters. This Commission did not reach Port Simpson until
the autumn, but in the preceding spring surveyors were sent
out and surveyed the lands around Port Simpson harbor, and
these i'mmediately afterwards were secured by various white
men-a transaction which is known in the country to-day4as
the "'Port Simpson land grab." -

Another cause of dissatisfaction with these Indians has
been the course pursued with regard to the reserve for the
Tsimpsheans. The Port Simpson-Indians had urged that if their
requests touching their title to thlan -sqould not be recognized,
that at least the whole of the peninsula should be
laid off as a reserve, for the Tsimpshean people, and be divided
between those residing at Port Simpson and at Metlakahtla in
proportion to their respective numbers, which at that time were
not very unequal As the land of the peninsula is practically
valueless, the request does not appear to have been an unreason-



able one. Nevertheless, it was refused. A mueh smaller reserve
was laid offand thiswassubsequently (after the exodus to Alaska
of most of the Retlakahtla Indians) divided in an arbitrsry
manner by the 1gand Commissioner, giving nearly as nuch land
tof less than 109' Indians who remained at Metlakahi'a as he
allowed to more than 800 residing at Port Simpion. And this
is only one instance among a great many which seem to shiow
that the fixed policy of the agertsof the Government was to
discriiinate against those Indians -who belonged tO Meth-
odist missions, and in favor of those connected with the Chu
of England.

Referring again to the work of the Joint C>mmi on, we
have to say that it appeâars to us that thé investigation was
conducted, in an exceedingly partial inanner. 'he:printed
instructions issued to the Commission required them to pro-
eeed directly to the Naas River, and, in their interviews with
the Indians, to make use of the local inter reters, andeven to
allow missionaries to interpret for them, ut not Vo~ act the -
part of advocates. In the face of these instrictions, the Coim-
mission stopped first at Metlakahtia, where they employed the
paid interpreter of the Anglican Bishop, who was taken to the
other villages against the wish, and even protest, of the In-
dians. At Port Simpson it had been the custom of the Indians,
from the time they adopted civilized habits, to hold all public
meetings in the sichool-houe-a commodious building, capable
of accommodating à large number. But when the Commission
reached that village, repeated attempts were made by them to
secure another building. This had an unfavorable effect upon
the people,'who seemed to repard it as an unnecessary slight
put upon themielves, and it was only when they refused to
meet the Commissioners anywhere else than in the school-
house, that the latter yielded'the point. In the printed rep rt
of the Commission, the language used'h guarded, but a part
of it is sufficiently explicit to show that the Commission
desired to convey an unfavorable inipression of certain mis-
sionaries of the Methodist Church. .-As before stated, we have
reason to believe that this unfavorable impression is mnuch
more strongly conveyed in the private report. Furthermore,
we are informed on good authority, that when this report was
prepareJ, one of the Commissioners at first refused to sign it,
declaring that the Methodist missionaries were the only imen
who were accomplishing any good among the Indians, and it
was only under pressure that he finally attached his signature.

It has already been intimated in this memorandum that
we have had reason to regard the conduct of certain agents of
the Government as by no means impartial in their treatment
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of our missionaries. Repeatedly the Indian Commissioner for
British Columbia has refused to grant any interview to Meth-
odist Indians when the missionaries were present In regard
to schools, they have not extended to us the consideration and
fair treatment which bas been extended to others, and requests
for medicines have been either refusçd or delayed for months.
In the laying out of Indian Reserves the same thing is apparent.
In this connection we instance the mission at Wassett, on Queen
Charlotte's Island, where the Land-Commissioner, in surveying
the reserve, excluded a tracs of about twelve acres so as to
enable the authbrities 'of the Anglican mission to obtain a
patent for the same; whilst at Port Simpson and on the Naas,
which are Methodist missions, he refused entirely to exclude
the ground on-which our -mission premises are erected from
the boundaries of the reserve.

Another instance of official partiality of which our Indians
at Greenville or Lach-al-tsap, on the Naas, complain, is that of
the Commissioner respecting the Stony Point Reserve adjoining
their village.

He set apart one chain onthe bank of the river as common-
age, and gave the rest of the reserve to the Greenville Indians
who resided there. He says in the Department Report for 1883,
at page 87: "On this reserve, some ten or' twelve families be-
longing to Lack-al-tsap village reside," etc.. "I arranged that
the resident Indians should have the exclusive privilege of
cultivating the land, while the rights of those who have been in
the habit of fishing should not be interfered with.". Some time
after this the Kincolith Indians, who live about twenty miles
off, came with a map,on which was marked, " Kincolith-Reserve,"
and took possession of it. The officia:is at Victoria at first denied
that they had issued the map, but subsequently admitted the fact;
and then Mr. O'Reilly denied having given it. to the Lach-al-
tsap Indians, notwithstanding his own report above quoted and
the testimony herewith furnished, and the Kincolith Indians
built upon and still occupy the ground behind the commonage,
altbough this was. given as above· t the .Greenville Indians,
whose village it adjoins, and who resided upon it.

Another matter of which we strongly couplain, is the course
pursued by the Government touching Industrial Institutes fór
the Indians in British Columbia. When we heard that such
Institutes were to be established, we naturally expected that in
the management of these schools the work done by the Me-
thodist Missionary Society would be recognized. When we
found this was not likely to be the case, representations were
made by us to the Indian Department, when we were assured
thatit was the intention of the Government that the'Institutes
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established in British Columbia should be Govçrnment Insti-
tutes and strictly non-seetarian., After these assurances, what
was our surprise to find that of three- Institutes two have been
placed, or are to be placed, in charge of the Roman Catholic
Church,while the third is planted at the Ang'lican mission of Met-

dlajcbetla, here there are not one hundred Indians ail told; and
Port Simpson, the Methodist mission twenty miles away, with
more than eight hundred Indians, is completely ignored. Had
the Goveniment adhered to its proposed intention to imake these
Institutes distinetly non-sectarian, we would not have com-
plained ; but the cdurse pursued we can only regard as un-
friendly towards the Methodist Church, and as ain keeping with
the general codrse pursued by the agents of the Government
in British Columbia, that is to discriminate against Methodist
missions and in fa:vor of those of other communions, although
fully five-sixths of the IndianÉ under religious instruction on
the north-west coast are under the charge of our missionaries.

T2 sum up, we respectfullv and, earnestly urge upon the
Government, first, such a modification of the policy toward the
Indians on the Pacific coast as will remove ail just ground of
complaint, and quiet the excited feeling that now unfortunately
exists. Secondly, a consideration of those matters of which we
complain, namely: unfair treatment, misleading and incorrect
reports of agents, partiality on the part of agents with respect
both to missions and schools, the ignoring of our reasonable
claims touching the proposed Institutes, and that policy toward
the Indians residing on Methodíst missions which we ean only
describe as a policy of exasperation. For these things we
respectfully ask redress.

Finally, we request that there may be a full investigation by
an independent and impartial commission of the.,matters herein
referred to, and that fair opportunity be given to the authori-
ties of the Missionary Board to be represented before the com-
mission and to produce such evidence as they deem important
in thecase.

Appended·hereto you.will find copies of a large number of
affidavits, declarations, etc., which have been made by parties
having an intimate knowledge of the facts upon which the fore-

going statements are based.
On behalf of the Misssonary Society of the Methodist

Church.
A. CARMAN, D.D.,
J. A. WILLIAMS, D.D., GeWnl Supts.

A. SUTHERLAND, D.D.,
Missionary Secretary,
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Copy.]
STATEMENT OF REV. T. CROSBY.

fluii , My knowledge of the Indian land question, in British Colum-
bia, dates back to 1864. In many instances, as on the Nanaimo
and Chemainus Rivers, on Vancouver Island, and also on the
Lower Fraser River, settlers were allowed to encroach upon the
Indians' gardens and eultivated patches until there was not ten
acres toeach family, and in sone cases not two. For years a
strong feeling existed among the Indians in regard to this.

The first visit of a Methodist minister to Port Simpson was
by the Rev. W. Pollard, Chairman of the British Columbia Dis-
trict, in February, 1874, at the request of the Indians. On his
return, he reported that the Indians were much troubled over

reports about their rights in the land. ' I went there in June,
1874, and found the feeling and apprehensions on the subject

very strong. The matter frequently came up in their councils.

I wrote a number of times, on their behalf, to Dr. Powell, who
replied that they need not fear.

When Dr. Powell came up the coast, in 1877, he visited the
Indians'of Port Simpson, and told them, in a meeting of four
or five hundred people, that the land belonged to them, and
whenever their hearts were troubled about what bad white
men night say to them they were to send to him. 'At the sanie
time he told theu that, in his opinion, the Hudson's Bay Com-
pany could clait no land outside their enclosure, and they need

xî If



not be troubled, for te was sent by the Queen to see after their
welfare. He also spoke kindly of their village Council, and
pointed out to them that their Council could remove any ob-
structions to the sanitary condition of theirvillage. A reserve
had been put by the'Government on all the lands on that part
of the coast until the Indian land question should be settled.

Mr. O'Reilly, Land Commissioner, came up in 1881, without
giving notice of his coming. He called together the few people
who were at home. They complaîned that they ,had not had
any notice, and hence so few of their people were at home, but
went on to explain what lands they wished to keep for their
people. He pooh-poohed and said he could not listexi to such'
long speeches, he must get on with bis work. He met some of
the Indians the next day at the Hudson Bay Company's Fort,
when they handed him a written protest, dated October 5th,
1881, against bis going onvwith the Reserves as he proposed,
and asing for at least the whole of the Tsimpshean Peninsula
for the Indians resident on it, in all about 2,000 people, and
their fishing stations on the Naas and Skeena. A copy of this
letter, with antther written by myself, was forwarded to, the
Indian Department at Qttawa, ii 1882. The whole Peninsula
is mountain and rock a d swamp. When Mr. McKay came up
as Indian agentrhe called the people together, December 3rd,
1883. They were pleased with the kind way he listened to
them. Mr. Hopkins took down the speeches, a copy of which
I kept.~ Mr. McKay told the Indians that their claim was a
reasonable one, and he would go and lay the whole matter
before the Government. He went away professedly to do this.
The Indians expected him back, but he -never came. They
afterwards sent a letter asking him the reason of this. The
Indianq were much displeased, and said the Government would
not let Mr. McKay come back because he wished to do right to
them.

Some timé after this Judge Elliott came up to Simpson.
He'spoke against the village councils, and told our people at
Simpson and Essington that they had no right to have such
councils, that they were illegal. These couzicils were the only
municipal government they had ever had.

I went with Mr. Hopkins and Mr. Green to Judge Elliott, to
lay a complaint before him of the violation of the Potlatch law,
and also of the Indians making and selling whiskey on Queen
Charlotte's Island. He replied that he could do nothing under
the Potlatch law, as a circular issued by Dr. Powell gave the
Indians permission to return the property they had received at
previous potlatches, which really meant keeping up the system
of potlatches. He took down Mr. Hopkins' statement in the
liquor case, but nothing more was done in the matter. He had



als refused to listen to well-founded complaints by our Port
Simpson Indians against Kincolith Indians of having stolen
their property, although they offered to swear to their charges.
By these means he greatly lessened the respect of the Indians
for the law.

About this time the Land Reserve was lifted by the Local
Government, a surveyor having been desp.atehed from Victoria
previously, to be on the spot at the date that the Reserve was
lifted in Victoria. This surveyor went to work at once and
staked off in lots and surveyed the whole land, eneireling the
harbor of Fort Simpson. This' was done in the interest of
private parties, and is known as the Fort Simpson land grab.

This annoyed the Indians very much. They wanted to
know who got the money, as they uniderstood this land was
sold.

May 20th, 1886, Captain Jemmet and party reached Naas,
having been sent by Commissioner O'Reilly to .survey the
fishing stations on the Naas River. The Indians of Port
Simpson sent him a letter protesting against his. going on with
the survey. Nov. 6th, 1886, the party came to Port Simpson.
The Indians again sent him a letter of protest against the
survey. He told them they were right in doing so, and he
would send their letters to the proper quarter. When Mr. Tuck
came up the'following spring, they also objected to his going
on with the survey. Hie took down their speeches and

promised to send them on to the proper authorities; but the
Indians'heard no more about it, and the survey was proceeded
with notwithstanding their protest.

In January, 1887, I war urged, at a large meeting of the
Indians, to go to Victoiea with a deputation to wait on the
Provincial Government and Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly. We
made this journey of 600 miles in mid-winter. On reachi
Victoria, an arrangement was made for an interview on 2n
February. Just before the time fixed for the meeting, we were
told it could not take place for another day; and, further, we
were told that neither Mr. Green nor myself would be permitted
to be present. Hon. J. Robson, Provincial Secretary, informed
me that Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly refused to meet the
Indians and the members of the Provincial Government if
either Mr. Green or myself was present.

A Kincolith Indian was employed as interpreter, though I
had gone down at the urgent request of the people for this pur-
pose, and the Indians repeatedly objected to going on with the
interview, as they were not satisfied with the interpreter. The
interpreter also expressed himself as doubtful of the correct-
ness of his interpretation.

At the time of the murder of C. Yopmans, at the Forks of the
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Skeena, alarming reports reached the' Government in Victoria.
Mr. Green and I were both in Victoria, and were asked our
opinion as to the sending upof an armed force and a war-ship.
We advised that au officer of the law and a constable be sent.
Accordingly, Mr. Elliott and Mr. Royeroft were sent up; but,
failing to get Indians to take them up the river, we-secured
them a number of guides and packers at the Methodist Missions.
at Simpson and Naas.

For some years. we have had school at Kit-lach-damux, on
the Upper Nas. When Mr. Green .informed me that Mr.
Croasdaile had been instructed by Dr. Powell to call together
the people of this place at his fishery, which was about forty
miles from their home, to give their vote as to whether they
would have the Methodist or English. Church to supply ·them
with a school, I wrote a letter to Mr. Croasdaile, protesting
against the injustice of this. In 1877 Dr. Powell visited
Skidegate and Gold Harbor, on Queen Charlotte's Islands, and
promised the Indians that they should have a school and
teacher. Depùtations from these places frequently came to us
asking for a school; but we as often put them off, saying we
understood the Church Missionary Society would take charge
of these islands, as a correspondence was- going on at that time.
between the Bishop and* ourselves, with a view to a division of
the field.

In the fal of 1881 I called on Dr. Powell, and told him that
these people were begging us to give thein a teacher, and asked
if he knew whether or not anything was going to be done for
them by the Bishop. He said he did not know of anything,
but by all means they should have a teacher. In July, 1882,
I called again, in company with the Rev. Mr. Wood and Mr.
Jennings. I had just returned from Ontario. I asked Dr. Powell
if anything had been done by the Bishop towards sending a
teacher to Skidegate. He replied that he was not aware that
anything had been done. I said, in case the Bishop sent no
one, would he think it well for us to send a teacher. He
replied that there could be no objection to that; it would be
be a good thing, if the Methodists had one, to send him. Mr.
George Robinson was appointed to the place. In the following
fall 1 called on Dr. Powell again, when he seemed much put
out, and said we ought not to have sent a teacher to Skidegate,
that we should have left that for the Bishop. I reminded him
of what he had said in July, in the presence of Mr. Jennings
and Mr. Wood, and he denied the whole thing.

Years ago we had an annual industrial show at Port Simpson,
and I applied to Dr. Powell for assistance in prizes, but he
refused to help us, though he did as.sist other places in this
way. For many years we have had a girls' boarding school and
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orphanage, as well as a day school at Port Simpsos, and Dr.
Powell visited it and knew what we were doing, yet though
qcWlgraints of $500 each were made to St. Mary's Rman

,tholi, and to Metlakahtla English Church Mission, no special
grant was ever made for the Methodists at Port Simpson,
although doin at least equal work. Within the last year one
of the three dustrial schools to be established in British
Columbia hasbeen located at Bishop Ridley's Mission, at Met-
lakahtia, where there are not more than oue hundred Indians,
while at Port Simpson Melhodiat Mission «there is a village of
eight hundred people, and a uch better. site and 1beation.

At the conference between the Indians and the Government,
February Sth, 1887, a Commission was promised to go up the
eoast in the spring, to inquire into their grievanees. The
Indiana were much surprised and annoyed when, instead of the
Commission, a surveying party was- sent up early in the
summer to lay*out the reserve. The Commission did not arrive
till the following October. Previous to the arrival of the Com-
mission, I received an official letter from Rev. E. Robson, Presi-
dent of the Methodist Conference, stating that Hon. J. Robson,
Provincial Secretary, had told him that the Commission had
been instructed to proceed to Naas and Port Simpson,,and that
local interpreters could be employed, or the missionaries might
act as interpreters if the Indians wished it. Instead of follow-
ing these instructions, the Commission went out of their way
to call at Metlakahtla, to get the Bishop's paid interpreter.
When they came to Port Simpson, the Indians protested strongly
against speaking through the Bishop's interpreter. The Indians
had arranged to meet the Commission in the Methodist school-
house, the usual place for public meetings; but notwithstanding
the school-house had been offered to them, the Commission tried
to make arrangements to hold their meeting in Hudson's Bay
Comny's Guest House, and, failing that, i a private house
which would not have accommodated half the people. Fiaally,
the Indians told them that if they did not come to the school-
bouse they would not meet them.

The Indians had been much pleased at the arrival of the
Commission, fired a salute, and were prepared to receive themn
in the most loyal manner, hoping that this would result in the
settlement of their difficulties; but the course the Commission
took greatly shook their confidence.

One of the leading chiefs, Alfred Doudowrard, with whom
the Provincial Secretary and the Attorney-General had pre-
viously corresponded with regard to thé Commission, had been
chosen by the Indians to be their chief speaker. He was in
the midst of his speech, at six o'clock, when the meeting was
adjourned to the next day. The next morning, at the opening
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speakon behalf of the Indians, because he wasa half-breed.
This gave the people no time to choose another in his place, and
the whole course of the Commission gave thé Indians the im-
pression that they did not wish to give them a-fair hearing.

Mr. Cornwall, the Dominion Commissioner, made remarks at
the close of the Commission which greatly displeased the
Indians, but they were refused permission to reply, and a letter
the Indians sent to the Commissioners, expressing their views,
was not published in the Report. Mr. Planta, the Provincial
Commissioner, told me that he wished this letter inserted, but
Mr. Cornwall would not agree to it. Mr. Planta further told
me that he made objections to signingbthe Report, because it
made undue reflection upon the Methodist niissionaries, who,
he believed, were the best þmissionaries on the coast, and were
doing the most good. I infer that it was the pressure brought
to bear upon him that induced Mr. Planta to sign the Report.

The charge of disloyalty made against the Methodist Indians
and miissionarie is positively without foundation, and had they
been treated fairTy and kindly the whole of this trouble might
have been avoided.

The Commissioners promised 41ýe Indians an official reply
after their Report should be made tò the Government, but no
reply ever came. Instead of this, an Indian agent was sent up
to force him.elf on the Indians, though the hn4ianslad ex-
pressly stated they did not wish an agent tilltheit nd
question was settled. More than that, the Indians maintine,
that at Fort Rupert and other places where agents were
stationed, drunkenness and "potlatching " and debauchery
were-aried on, and the Indians at these places were much
worse off than they themselves without an agert.

Last year I received a letter from. Dr. Powell saying that all
comuonications with the Department were to be sent through
Mr. Todd, the Indian Agent at Metlakahtl&' I sent through
Mr. Todd, in May last, a request for a supply of medicines, as
it has been the custom of the Department to supply medicines
for the use of the Indians. Month after month passed, but no
medicines came; and I was obliged to furnish them myself, as I
was constantly visiting Indians in need of them. Last Decen-
ber I received a note, saying the medicinesewr in Victoria for
me.

The -Methodist Tsbimpsean Indians feel very keenly the
aspersions on their characters and the unjust comparisons made
by the Joint Commission and in Departmental Reports between
them and the Kincolith Indians. The latter are frequently
referred toas "loyal" and more "eivilized," and various con-
trasts unfavorable to the Methodist Indians drawn. The facts are
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that the latter have been uniformly1lyai nd law-abiding; while
the Kincoliths, who are now under the Indian Advancement,
and who have been so much lauded by the officials, have been in
the habit cf taking the law into their own hands. No longer
ago than last summer,-they-t-kòk the Deputy FisherylInspector,

. McNab, before 'heir village council, and demanddt at he
hand over to tbem hallthe mroney hehad collected from the
fisheries.

Last spring the same band fired upon an Indian, ArthurQfab,
and his family,in his ceioe, when about to land at their village.
Not long before; Messrs. McArthur and Roundy, when on their

way to their timber limits, leased from *the Provincial Govern-
ment, were stop ed by tlreats-from these same Kincolith
Indians, -who too their boat from them, and by violence pre-
vented thein from going to their limits.

The fact that the Agent, Mr. Todd, has spent nearly the whole
of the year at Metlakhatla and Kincolith, where there are only
about 300 Indians has tended to prejudice the other Indians

against the Department... He never even made an officia visit
to Port Simpson, unless the occasion on which he accompanied
Mr. O'Reilly there could be ,onsidered one. He has never
visited SkidegateGld Harbor, Clue, or Kit-a-maat, where we
have missions and beautiful Christian villages, or Bella Coola,
where there is a lesadvanced mission; Bella Bella, another
lourishing mission village, he merely visited in passing, and

did net meet the people officially.,
ÏIt has always appeared to the Indians and tre people of the

oast ohe Bof Rnidley had the ear of the Government, and -
at his call a war-ship would come at any time. At three dif-
ferent times war-ships were~sent up to Metakahtla, at great ex-

pense tothe Government, and creating a very nnhappy feeling
among the Indians. Rev. F. Dunn anrd his-rwife, who had been
in charge at Metlakahtlastated to me that if Bishop Ridley had
not be'en there, all would have been quiet; that his few adher-
ents were only ke t by presents. In the month of may last, I,
with the Rev. A Geen, called on Dr.P
Dr. Preager had been stationed at Metlakahtla, and was Seòetary
of, the North- Pacifie Mission.

' He told us that while he was at Metlakahtla a trouble arose
t'et over one of the Indiana, a follower of Bishop Ridley, comamen-

eing to build a house on a piece of land, to which Mr. Duncan's
Idasobjected. Finally, the Bishop laid some charges

against certain Indiana, who were 'tried by Dr. Powell and
another magistrate, who went up onla man-of-war. - The
charges were dismissed, but -Dr. Pwl proposed that both

-Mr. Duncan's Indians and Bishop Ridley's should agree to let
the disputed land remain unoccupied, neither party to take it,
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and so avoid further trouble. Indians of both parties, with
Mr.. Duncan andBishop Ridley, agreed to this. Shortly after-
wards Bishop 1ýidley sailed for England, leaving Dr. Preager
and Rev. -Mr. Duncanwin charge at Metlakahtla, and all went
quietly. Although there were two churches, there was no
clashing. This went on for several months, till they received
a letter from Bisbop Ridley, saying things were growing too
quiet at Metlakahtla, and that they should tell Moses Venu (the
man who -had been stopped before) to go on and build his
house on the disputed land, and so excite Mr. Duncan's Indians,
and then the Government would move to.put Mr. Duncan and
his people down. Dr. Preager wrote the Bishop to tbe effect
that he would do no such thing.

In regard to the reported outbreak on the Upper Skeena, lait
summer, after Kit-wan-cool Jim had shot the conjuror, I would
say that.reports were much exaggerated by interested parties.
If Mr. Graham, an old and tried magistrate from that part of
the country, had been allowed to remain there the whole,
trouble might bave been averted; and if the special constables
sent up had acted with ordinary prudence, no special difficulty
need have been encountered. As to the war-ship being sent up,
there was no need of that whatever. When Mr. Royeroft in-
quired into the matter he strongly 'censured~the course of the
constables. So that the fact in the whole trouble was caused,
not by the " misleading" Methodist missionaries, as some of the
press of this country had it, but by the blundering of Govern-
ment officials.

I solemnly declare the foregoing statement to be true, to the
best of my knowledge and belief.~

T. CROSBY.
MARcH 22nd, 1889.

DECLARATION OF REV.-J' A. WOOD.

I solemnly declare that I was in Victoria on July 17th, 1882,
and in company with Rev. T. Crosby, and Mr. D. Jennings,
went to Dr. Powell's office.

Mr. Crosby asked Dr. Powell if there would be anything in
the way of the Methodist Chutch sending a teacher to Skide-
gate, Queen Charlotte's Island. Dr. Powell replied in this way :
There cannot now be any objection, as the other Church has
not sent one; and he said he thought .it would be a good thing
for the Methodist Church to send a teacher there.

J. A. WooD.
Signed in the presence of,

F. W. FosTER, J.P.,
DECzyeBER 5th, 1888. Clinton, B.C.
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Copy.]

AFFIDAVIT OF REV. D JENNINGS.

Sometime between the 13t and -t e 16th of Jul n the year
1882, Iremember going in comp y with the Rv. Thomas
Crosby and James A. Wod to th soffice of the Indian Depart-
ment of-the Provine6-of.BerHtisf umbia, wjich was then on
Wharf Street, Victoria. We h airinterview with I. W:-Powell,
Esq., M.D., Superintendent of ndian affairs. The conversation
was carried on mainly betw n Mr. Crosby and Dr. Powell.
Among the topie discussed ere the line separating the land of
the Hudson's Bay Company om the Indian reserva ion, and the
condition of& the Skideg Indians in regard to schools, etc.
About Skidegate, the con ersation took the following turn:

Mr Crosby asked, "H the Bishop sent a teacher to Skide-
gate ?"

Dr. Powell answere4, "I am not aware that he has.'"
Mr. Crosby asked, "In case the Bishop has not sent, and is

not likely to send, a her to Skidegate, had we not better
send one ?"

Dr. Powell answ "By all means, Mr. Crosby."
am not prepar d to say the above are the exact words used

by'these gentletn on that occasion, but I do affirm the above,
to be a correct re rt of the substance of whai passed between
them on the qu tion of sending a teacher to Skidegate.

D. JENNINGS.

Sworn to fore me this thì d day.of December, A.D., 1888,
at Port Simp n, in the Provi ce of British Columbia.

S. Y. Woo•rroi
A Stipendiay Magistrate and Justie of the7?"°Peace in and for the Prorince

of British Colu&nia.

Copy.]

LETTER OF REV. THOMAS CROSBY TO TE SUPER-
INTENDENT GENERAL OF INDIAN A FAIRS.

To te RioT HONORABLE SIR JOHN A. MACDONAe, SuperMn
tendent General of Indian Affair, Canada.

I beg to be allowed the liberty of addressi you on the
bject of Indian affairs in the Province of Britis Columbia, a

subject (as I think) cf the utmost importance, both to the
Indians themselves and /to the government who old them as
wards. In the first pIae, I should like to call y ur attention

6t tbequëtion of Indi n lands in that Province. At the time

y

V.À1
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of Confederation it was stipulated that the Indians should be
treated as liberally as they had.been treated under the Colonial
Government; but an examination revealed the fact that that had
been far from what )was right and just. At Cowichan, Saanich,
Nanaimo, and many other places where the Indians had cleared
land for potato-patches, white men have been allowed to come
in and pre-empt these patches, and secure government titles for
them, and the Indians have been driven off--hdiven from the
very landsthey had themselves cleared and cultivated. Tey
have been compelled to suffer this injustice both in Vancouver
Island and on the Lower Fraser, and, I believe, also in 'the
Thompson River country, until tribe after tribe bas been
crowded out, and their rights encroached upon until, in many
instances, scarce an acre of good land is left for the Indians.
Soon after Confederation the present Superintendent of Indian
Affairs in British Columbia, Dr. Powell, began to look into this
matter, but for some reason unknown to the writer, failed to·
secure redress for those grievances on account of which the
Indians most justly complain.

It will be remembered that Lord ]Duerin- ini his address at
Victoria, on the occasioni of bis visit~to RÈitish Columbia, stated-
that Her Majesty's, Government never took lands from the
aboriginal, tribes of any country without making a proper
treaty with them, and no treaty having been made with the
natives of British Columbia, the country still by right belongs
to them. Not only has no treaty been made with them, but
where reserves have been laid out, the small amount of land
allowed them is a gross injustice, both to the Indians and to the
Dominion Government, under whose care they are placed. The
Indians throughout the country are aware of the wrong which
is being done them, and the sooner, therefore, the matter is
righted the better. Much dissatisfaction bas arisen from the
way in which the présent Land Commissioner bas laid out what
he calls their" reserves. In many cases the Indians have not
been consulted at all. Apparently they are the very last parties
whose interests are to be considered. When (as in some cases)
the Indians have asked for a council to talk the matter over, he
bas told them that he had no time to hear them, and went on
laying out his so-called reserves.

Now, whatever may be said of the diffBculty at this date of
finding suitable lands for the Indians in the more settled parts
of the country, it cannot be .difficult to do so in the northern
part of the Province; where there are no claims to be considered
but those of the Indians; and there can be no reason why the
Indians of those regions should not be allowed a large tract of
country for their hunting-grounds, and such portions of sea
coast and rivers as may be necessary for fishing purposes. The
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country is rough and mountainous, and better adapted for
hunting than for anything else.

The people of Port Simpson have requested that a certain
- section on the coast be granted them. To thig the Commission

has objected. Since then they have asked that the whole

peninsula be grantea to themselves and other. Indians who
reside upon' it (in sall ý%bout two thousand people). This is -a
most reasonable request ; but this, also, they have failed -to
secure.

The fishing stations of the various tribes are also of the
utrmost importance to them, and .should be properly set apart
fortheir benefit. What'has been said is equally applicable to
the coast tribes and to those of the interior. I beg, also, to cal l
your attention to the management of the Indian agencies;and
the distribution of the very liberal grant made by the Dominion
Government for the benefit of the Indians. Out:of $40,000

U 1given for the instruction and civilization of these tribes, only a
very small portion is so applied. Absolutely nothing has been
donc by the agencies to break up the cruel, heathen practices
and wild, demoniac orgies of the people. In fact the agencies
seem rather to encouiage than restrain them in these things.
Have the agencies done anything to stimulate industrious
habits? I know of at least one sober, industrious tribe, who
have for five years held an annual industrial show, and who
have repeatedly applied in vain to the local Indian Department
for some little help or encouragement in the way of prizes for
successful exhibitors. [The reference here is to the Indians of
Port Simpson.]

As regards the degrading heathen practices, the Govern-
ment has the power through the agencies to stop them entirely,
if it will. Yet I ask, what is being done in this direction ?
In some instances a majority of the tribe are in favor of
abandoning them, but are powerless in their efforts to entirely
eradicate them, because the agencies do not encourage them
in their efforts, while the agents must be aware that the weeks
and months spent in wild, heathen dancing, and the reckless
destruction of property, and the degrading cruel rites attend-
ing these practices, constantly preclude the possibility of im-
provement.

Ibeg to inquire if it is the intention of the Government (as
it is rumored) to prevent the attendance at the Indian schools
of the unfortunate balf-breed children, who, deserted by their
fathers, are living in the camps entirely dependent on their

poor Indian mothers and relatives. In many cases these are
the most destitute an. degraded found among these people, and
to leave them without care and instruction is to raise up a
class of desperadoes (like the MeLean boys of Thompson's River),
of the most dangerous and troublesome type.

1<I
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Adverting to the cpestion of Indian fisheries, I. beg to remind
you that it is -of the utmost impôrtance to the natives -that the
fishing-laws be enforced more rigidly than they now are, for the
better preservation of the means of subsistence for the numerous
tribes along the coast.

Hoping that this whole mtter may early receive your careful
consideration. I have the honor to be, sir,

Yourobedie ?-tservant,
. Y oe Taos. CRosBY.

Methodist Missionary, Port Simpson, B.C0.

P'oaR SIMPS'ON, 1882.

Copy.]

LETTEft OF PROTEST OF INDIAN CHIEFS AND
OTHERS AT PORT SIMPSON.

To P. O'R EILLY, Esq., Indian Reserve Commissioner.

HON. SIR,-
We the Indian poulation of Port Simpsonregret to

hear that in your interview with Môses McDonald, one.of our
chiefs, and others of our people to-day, you expressed the opin-
ion that our reserve should extend only south of our village,
site, and include no land to the xiorth of us. - Now we cannot
feel thatthis is just, and we wish, by this letter, to strongly
protest against anysuch reserve being assigned us. , The land
to the south of us for -miles is worthless, and would not furnish
us*with firewood.
- The whole country, from the Naas River to the Skeena
River, has been in the posâession of our nation from time
immemorial. No treaty has ever been made with us, and we
earnestly hope that the Government will not deprive us of our
ancient rights, and wrest from us the lands which God gav'e to
o-r fathers, thus leaving us in poverty. We do npt wish to
put any. obstruction in the way of the Government dealing with
the land, but, after duly considering the matter, we have de-
eided to ask for a reserve extending from Ma:l-co, seven miles
to the south of our village, and to Con-e-mis, ten miles to the
north, and ten miles-mor ,or less- back from the salt water,
'together with theisands.lying immediately along the coast in
the vicinity of our village.

If this reserve cannot be made us, we ha-4 but one other
proposition to make, that is, that the whole Tsimpshean penin-
sula be reserved to us and our children in conjunction with the
people of the neighboring village of Metlakatlah, excepting only
such claims as have already been established by law. The
whole of the said peninsula to be divided into two portions for
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the people of Metlahkatlah and ourselves respectively, according
to the population of each

Independent of our la reserves, we desire that our fishing
stations on the Naas and Skeena rivers be secured to us as a
matter of the greatest importance.

Hoping that our cla ims inay be kindly considered by the
Government we shall ever' pray. Signed on behalf of the
people residing at Port Simpson,

Their Marks His Mark

(Chief) PAUL X SCOW-GATE. ADAM X CLARK.
JAMES X HAYWARD. RICHARD WILSON,

(Chief) ALBERT x E. NELSON. JOSEPH MORRISON.
(Chief) MosEs x MCDONALD. THOMAS WIaGHT.

P.S.-The land spoken of in our first request would include
most of our potato-patches and some of our fishing- grounds
Four years ago, in anticipation of a visit from theLnd Com-
missioner, we agreed to request this as our reserve. You say
the land is worthless, so it is for a great many purposes; but it
is our fathers' inheritance, and unless the Government gives us
something better, we wish to hold to our claim.

PORT SIMPSON, B.C.,
Oct. 5th, 1881.

Copy.]
STATEMENT OF REV. A. E. GREEN,

METHODIST MISSIONARY AT NAAS RIVER

I first heard of the land question from the lips of the Rev.
William Pollard, in the year 1874, when he returned from
visjting the Indians at Port Simpson. In the district meeting,
he declared that he found the Indians greatly excited, and mucli
disatisfied, as white men were going iin and taking up land, and
the Indians claimed the land, and looked upon men who tdok
up land as trespassers.

I came to Naas River first in the spring of 1877, and was
advised to look out and pre-empt a piece of land to erect mission
buildin on, and to use for a boys' industrial schooL But I
found tle idea of ownership so strong among theIndians, that
I had to give that project up. I soon found that this feeling
was general. Every mountain, every valley, every stream was
named, and every piece belonged to some partieglar family.
This laim was reco-'ized by all the white men, viz., Harvey
Snow, James Grey, . J. Robinson, who rented small sites from
the Indians for fishing purposes, and paid the Indians regular
rent for the same. When the two last named men applied and
received Crown grants from the Provincial Governmen, and

j:
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the Indians were made to give up their gardens and to remove
their houses off the land that had Éeen granted to these white
men, so strong was the 'feeling against these white men taking
this land, that Grey only got his surveyed by promising a saw-
mill should be built on it. The ten acres at Fishery Bay
was not, and never has been, surveyed. I wish to point out
these facts,. because Dr. Powell, Indian Superintendent, has
tried to make it appear that it is only during the last few years
that the Indians have made a claim to the land. Both be, the
Reserve Commissioner O'Reilly, and the members of the Pro-
vincial Government claim it is only since the trouble took place
at, Metlakahtla, between Mr. Duncan and Bishop Ridley, in the
year 1881, that the Indians claimed to bé the owners of the
land. I can state nrost positively that this is not correct, as in
1877 they would not allow any one to use any land, without
leave from tbem, and payment.

In 1880, Mr. H. E. Croasdaile had a foreman named Mr. Nice,
and he erected a large trap to catch salmon in the Naas River.
The day that it was towed and placed in position the Indians
became very excited, and stopped the work. Mr. Nice wrote,
asking me to go down, as he was afraid the Idians would shoot
him. I went; and the Indians, to the number of about 700,
met 'together. I heard them, and urged them to' leave the
matter with Dr. Powell. I wetit at once-fifty milés-to Port
Simpson, and wrote Dr. Powell in regard t the matter. He
acknowledged my letters, and said he would inquire into the
matter. I do not know if he did so. or not; but I know
the Indians did not hear from him again, and%-the trap was
allowed to remain ig the place the Indians complained of, till
carried off by the ice. I state this part for the pupose of show-
ing that it is not true that I have ever tried to set the Indians
against the white men, but that I have gone to great trouble
and expense to appease the Indians, and to prevail upon them
to permit work to go on; and, also, to show the little interest
Dr. Powell took to place these matte's right.

In May of 1878, Mr. James Grey came to the mission-house
with'a letter, which he handed me to read; it was from Mr. C.
Youmans, Skeena Forks, asking Mr. J. J. Robertson, J.P., to
go to his relief, stating that Indians had robbed his store, and
that he was afraid of his' life, and dare not eave his house.
Mr. Robertson had gone to San Francisco, and as not expected
back for several nonths. Grey asked me Vogo. I went;
walked 180 miles; fouhd Mr. Youmans was living in great fear
of the Indians. I called them together, explained to them hoyv
bad it was to steal, and treat Mr. Youmans the way they had
done. They said they would not return the goods to Youmans,
but would giye them to me. The women shortly brought the
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goods, nearly one hund-ed dollars worth, and put them down
at my feet, and I returned them to Mr:Youmans, anil made
peace between them. Yet Dr. Powell calla me a" nisleader."

Some years ago, I, with Rev. T. Crosby, accompaied Charles
Russ and Chief Mountain, two Naas Indians who were sent by
the tribe, to wait on Dr. Powell i regard to matters affecting
their people. Rev. T.Crosby and I went with these men to call
on Dr. Powell; he shook bands with them, and they told him they
had come a great distance to have ' long talk with him. Re
promised to meet them the following morning at his office,.and
hear all they bad to say ; but early the next morning be sent
us word, through Rev. R H. Smith (since deceased), that hel
would not meet the Indians. Mr. Crosby and I called on Dr.
Powell, when he still refused to see the Indians, but said Mr.
Crosby could write bim if he chose; and so the promise to the
Indians was broken, and the statement made by Dr. Powell to
the Department that his "cofference with the deputation was
fully completed, and his replytread to the-Indians, and then
handed to the Rev. R. H. Smith," is not correct. The delega-
tion was not heard through, no reply was read to them, and
none was handed to Mr. Smith in my pres.ence, and Mr. Smith
expressed himself as profoundly surprised the following morning
when Dr. Powell refused to meet the delegation. The Indians
returned home to tell their friends that Dr. Powell broke his
word with them

At the village of Kit-wan-silh, about thirty-five m'iles up the
river, a chief named Job Calder accepted the Gospel, with his
family, and opened his bouse for a school. William. H. Pierce
taught school in this bouse, and about twenty young people
placed themselves, with the chief, under the care of the Metho-
dist Church. The teacher lived-in the house used for school
and preaching. Théèhoise was large, about fifty feet square,
used in the past for.the heathen dance and potlatch. The chief
now proposed to take it down, and rebuild it; I offered- him
shingles and nails, and promised to belp him to nake it much
smaller, so it would be more suitable for school and church.
When we had the roof off, and were working inside on the new
foundation, a large number of old men and women, led on by
an old medicine-man, came and forcibly prevented us. An old
man tore my coat, and badly tore the flesh from my arm, and
we had to stop. I went to Port Simpson, consulted Mr. Crosby,
then laid it before Mr. R. HE Hall, J.P., who issued summonses.
The Indians appeared,'excepting the one who tore my arm; he
ran away. Mr. Hall heard the case, and said the Indians were
decidedly wrong, but he thought it would be better to present
the matter to the Indian Superintendent, Dr. Powell, and the
Attorney-General at Victoria; so he wrote out, and the Indians
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signed, an agreement to abide by'the answer, and that they
would not interfere with the re-building of the house, if Dr.,
Powell and the Attorney-General said it could go up. Dr.
Powell and the Attorney-General answered, through R. H. Hall,
J.P., that if the majority of the Indians were against it, then it
could not go up, and we must stop till we had a majority. The
chief thought it hard that he could not improve his own house,
and it broke up our little.work there for some time, and the
chief had to leave that village and come down to Greenville,
where he still resides. I wish to point out the unfairness of
this treatment, and how different from the way the Department
and the Provincial Government treated Bishop Ridley while he
headed a very small minority at Metlakahtla, the majority
numbering above eight hundred, while the Bishop did not have
over eighty, yet both Dr. Powell and the two Governments
upheld the minority, and would not let the majority rule. Why
should this difference be made? A Methodist minority had no
rights, and neither the Department nor the Government would
protect them. But a Church of England minority was pro-
tected by special constables, magistrates, and men-of-war.

When Mr. Royeroft and Judge Elliott failed to secure
Indians to take them up to-Skeena Forks to secure a murderer,
I secured Indians to guide and pack for them, and, so enabled
them to accomplish their mission with little expense to the
Government. And later, when the Indians at Skeena Forks
hadso threatened the Hudson's Bay Company manager, Mr.
Sampere, that he had left the place, 1 met him about fourteen'
miles below the Forks, and he told me of the excitement among
the Indians, and how they had sent him away; I went on and
held a meeting with the Indians, and preeaüied upon them to
be quiet and not to interfere with the white men, and by so
doing prevented a trouble that might have cost the Govern-
ment much money, and some blood.

In the fall of 1881, Mr. O'Reilly came to the river and
proceeded to lay off sme reserves. In November of that year
I arrived in Victoria, from a visit to England. Mr. O'Reilly
took me to his office and told me what be had done at Naas in
my absence. He told me that at Fishery Bay (Reserve No.-10),
he had made a conmonage of one chain deep all along the bank
of the river; that back of that one chain he had reserved for
our Indians of Greenville (Lach-al-tsap); that at Canaan and
Red Cliffs he had made one chain deep commonage, and back
of that he had reserved for the Kincolith people. I was greatly
surprised when I heard that he (Mr. O'Reilly) declared that
he did not give it to the Lach-al-tsap people. I first heard of
this change by the Chief of Kincolith people, who came up here
with a map, and said that the lanid marked on it belonged to
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them. ] saw Reserve No. 10 was marked on this map, and the
map was headed "Kincolith Indian Reserves." I at once
wrote to Mr. O'Reilly and to Dr. Powell in regard to this, but
neither of them answered my letters. I wrote asking for a
map for our Indians, but no notice was taken of the letter.

i' Our Indians became much excited when the Kincolith people
showed theirmap to that land which was pro'mised them by
Mr. O'Relly. As soon as possible I obtained the Ble Books

J. on Indian Affairs for 1882, which contained Mr. O'Reilly'
report, andad this to the Indians. Mr. O'Reilly there states
that on going to Fishery Bay (Stony Point, Reserve No. 10),
he found some twelve or fifteen families residents of Lach-al-

tsap (Grenville) residing there, who had been attracted by
work at Mr. Croasdaile's cannery. He then states in the said

report that he arranged a commonage of one chain deep, along
the bank of the river, and arranged that the resident Indians
should have the exclusive rig-ht to land back of the commonage.
The Indians took the book and read this for themselves and
were satisfied, saying : "The word in the book is like the word
be spoke to us here, so it cannot be true that he has given our
land to the Kincolith people." As I was unable to get any
answer to the letters written on this matter, either from Dr.
Powell or Mr. O 'Reilly, I te to the Honorable Superin-
tendent-General of Indian airs, under t date of April 3rd,
1886, and in course of time received from Ottawa the answer
given by Mr. O'Reilly to the Department, in which he states
that in laying off these reserves on the Naas River, he laid
them off as a whole, not designatfing to which part of the tribe

any reserve should belng. Bt this is not correct, for he
specially nardsbatk o reerved it for the " resident Indians,"
and namoes them ycing rthem " the residents of Lach-al-
tsap." Then, again, inlaying off Cahaan Reserve, and Red
Clis Reserve,'r. O'Reilly states that he arranged that the
r1sidents of Kincolith should have themexclusive right to the

5 -and back oif the one chain commonage at both these reserves.
M1r. O'Reilly admits thaf,, and those Indians are undisturbed in
what he first promised them. And it is very strange that he
should still declare that he did -not reserve No. 10 for our

people. If it was true, as he states, that he did not reserve it
to the res8idents back of the one chain, then he is open to the
charge of being very partial, in that he gave the Church
Mission Indians, of Kincolith, the land back of reserves at
Canaan, and at the Red Cliffs, and did not reserve the back of
NIo. 10 to our people, although he found them residing on the

8 said land. The Reserve No. 10, claimed by Lach-al-tsap
people, is three miles from the winter'village named Lach-al-

tsap (Greenville), and is about sixteen miles from the Kincolith



19-

village. The Lach-al-tsap people live there, on Reserve No. 10,
about seven months of the year; the Kin-eolith and other
Indians, about six weeks, to fish the oolachan.

Dr. Powell sent me a letter to read to the Indians, to the
effect that the potlatch was now unlawful. I read the letter to
those Indians who were accustomed to the holding of potlatch
feasts, etc.,:and the Indians were willing to stop if such was the
law; but a short time after a further letter was received from
Dr. Powell, informing the Indians that the Government would
not'prevent them from returning property which they owed on
account of previous potlatches. If Dr. Powell knows anything
aboutpotlatches he must know that a potlatch means to return
property already received and owing, with a large addition to
it. iSo that the receiver is immediately indebted to the man he
receives the present from. It did not require a circular to tel]
the Indians that the Government would not prevent them from
paying their debts. I represented this inatter to Hon. Superin-
tendent-General of Indian Affairs, and received from Ottawa
Dr. Powell's reply, in which he .quotes my allegations that
" Judge Elliott will not take action in the matter, shielding
himself with Dr. Powell's circular." Dr. Powell then. states
that the reason alleged is not a tenable one, and further says
he has no hesitation in pronouncing the statement a very
improbable one. Now, I affirm that what I wrote is true. 1,
with Rev. T. Crosby, Rev. D. Jennings and Rev. G. F. Hopkins,
called in a body qn Mr. Elliott, asking him to enforce the law
against potlatches, and against the making and selling of whisky
to Indians. He replied he would try and stop the whisky,
but could not interfere with the potlatches on account of Dr.
Powell's circular, a copy of which he read to us. I also declare
the statement made by Dr. Powell to the Department that the
potlatch is dying out, is not correct.

In the' month of January, 1887, I was-asked by a large num-
ber of Indians to go to Victoria with a deputation of Indians
to wait on the Provincial Government, and Dr. Powell and Mr.
O'Reilly, going in winter six hundred miles, at great expense.
We reached Victoria, and it was arranged to see the Provincial
Government, and Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly, on- the 2nd of
February, but just before the time fixed for the meeting we
were notified that it would not take place till another day, and
afterwards were told that neither Rev.. T. Crosby nor myself
would be permitted to be present at the interview. The Hlon.
John Robson, Provincial Secretary, informed Mr. Crosby and
myself that Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly'refused to meet the
Indians with the members of the Provincial Government if the
missionaries (Rev. T. Crosby and myself) were present. It is
well known that the missionaries of the Church of England are



treated in a very different manner; that.j have' the ear of
the Government ;~and thèy boast.in the of the Church of
England Missionary Society that they conI énd did get, through
the Bishop of Columbia'e application to the Departmesnt, a gun-
boat despatched to Metlakahtla.

Dr. Powell again and again makes it appear-tbough his,
reports, etc., that I have led the Indians on the Naas f>ô oppose
the Government, and that our Indians are, not loyal..- I declare
that such is not the case, but quite the-r *e. I have always
taught our Indians to respect the Queen'sind our Indians,
I affirm, are quite loyal. On the -other hand, br. Powell seeks
in his reports to convey the idea -that, while -the- Methodist
Indians -are dissatïfied'and dialoyal, the Church of England
Indians are both stigfied anPlyal. this is most misleading,
for it was the-Indiaus of=KiTcolith who, by force, took McArthur
and Roundy ont of-their boat, and ptevented them from cutting
timber on land forty miles fromi Kincolith, which they (the
white men) held under a timber lease from the Provincial
Government. These same Indians fired on Arthur Clah and
family,-when Clah was passing this mission village last spring
in his canoe. During the past summer these same Indians took
the Deputy Fish Inspector, Mr. McNab, to their village, and
insisted on his handing over to them the money he had collected
from boat fisheries on the river, declaring both land and water
belonged to them. The Methodist Indians have remained
quiet, and yet are branded disloyal, and their missionaries are
called "misleaders;" and those who have disturbed the peace
are held up as intelligent and loyal Indians.

I also submit that Mr. O'Reilly showed partiality in laying
off reserves. On going to Massett, Queen Charlotte's Islands, he
laid out the reserve, but did not include in the reserve the land
on which the Church Mission building stood. Ie allowed
twelve acres to remain out of the reserve, so the mission author-
ities could purchase it from the Provincial Government, and so
secure a deed. for the same. But at every Methodist mission
he included all land, with mission buildings, in the Indian
reserves.

Bet2ween- three and four years ago Bishop Ridley wrote a
letter on board the steamer Otter, at Naas River, and sent it to
Dr. Powell, Indian Superintendent, in which he reflected on
Methodist missionaries and, their teachings-a very incorrect
and misleading letter. Dr. Powell at once sent the letter to the
Provincial Government in Victoria. The following session of
the Provincial Legislature, W. Raybould, M.P.P. for, Nanaimo,
moved for a return of all torrepondence between all parties
and the Government in regard to Indian affairs on the North-
West coast. The motion was carried, but when the correspon-
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dence was presented, Bishop Ridley's-letter was not brought

down, although this was what was wanted, and the Honorable

ProvinciaiF-Seeretary bad informed me that it could be pro-

cured through a motionin the House.. But it was withheld, so

that We did not have the opportunity to answer the false

charges made therein.
Further, I wish to say that in the month of May of the pre-ý

sent year, I, with Rev. T. Crosby, called on Dr. Preager at his

house in Nanaimo, and that Dr. Preager there told Mr._OrGsby

and me that he was stationed at Metlakahtla with Bishop
Ridley, and that he was Secretary of the North Pacifie Mission;

that a trouble arosk.ùr one of the- Indians, a follower of

Bishop Ridley, commencîng to build a house on a piece of land

to which Mr. Duncan's fndians objected. Finally, the Bishop

laid some charges against certain Indiari,« who were tried by

Dr. Powell and another magistrate, who went up on a man-o.-

war. The charges were dismissed, but Dr. ~Powell proposed

that both Duncan's Indians and Bishop Ridley's'shoùld agree

to let the disputed land remain unoccupied, neither party to

take it, and so avoid furtbher trouble. Indians of both parties,

with Mr. Duncan and Bishop Ridley, agreed to this. Shortly

afterwards Bishop Ridley sailed for England, leaving Dr.

Preager and Rev. F. Dunn in charge of Metlakahtla, and all

went quietly. Although there were two Churches there was

no clashing, and this went on for several months, till they

received a letter from Bishop Ridley saying things were grow-

ing too quiet at Metlakahtla, and that they should tell Mose

Venn (the same man who had been stopped before) to go on

and build his house on the disputed land, and so excite Mr.

Duncan's Indians,-and then the Government would move and

put Mr. Duncan andIhis people down. Dr. Preager was told by

the Bishop to stir up the trouble for this purpose, and yet Dr.

Powell holds up Bishop Ridley and his teaching, and cries down

Mr. Duncan, so blind is he to facts.

The land that has been reserved so far is not sufficient for

the Indians. It is of little use to judge by the number of acres,

as I can declare that not one acre in ten is 'suitable for use.

Not4only should quantity, but also quality, be considered in lay-

iegpff Indian reserves. I wrote to the Superintendent-General

at Ottawà., in regard to the poor quality of the land around

Greenville (Lach-al-tsap), and stated that Mr. O'Reilly's report

"that the land was good, and that all kinds of grain except

wheat would do well,» was incorrect; that no grain would ripen

and that even potatoes are very soft. I received from Ottawa

Mr. O'Reilly's reply, in which he re-affirms it to be good. I

declare that, frèm twelve years' residence on the river, I am

able to say that the land is very poor. Mr. O. Reilly forwarded
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to the Department a letter cut out of the Colonist newspaper, Of
Victoria, and written by J. B. McCullough, of Nass River, in

regard to certain lands bemg good, and led the Department to

believe that-the saiâl letter referred to the land of which the

quality was in question; but such was not the case. Mr.
McCullough was referring to land more than seventy-five miles

distant from the land m dispute. I wrote about the poor
quality of the land around Lach-al-tsap ard lower Naas, and I

beg to refer to published "Report of Conference between the

Provincial Government and Indian Delegates from Port Simp-
son and Naas Rivers," page 268, in which Mr. O'Reilly speak-

ing of this very land, says, "The land is all poor land and

becomes overflowed. It is not good land, for the instant·you
get out of swamp you get into rock." It is quite evident Mr.

'Reilly has ch d his tune about the quality of this land

since his surveyor as been over the ground.. But.why should

he write and denymy statement before he ascettained if it was-

correct or not.
I submit, that Dr. Powell and the Department. take more

notice of the words of, and grants more favors to, Church Mission
Indians of Kincolith, who number about 200, than of the other

700 Indians on the river. A large grant' for windows, nails,

etc., etc.,to assist in building, was granted to the Church Mission;
but although such help was urgently needed by our Indians,
and application was made k Dr. Powell, we failed to secure

any.
The Commissioners, Messrs. Cornwall and Planta, promised

the Indians that an answer would be sent., but thirteen months

have passed and no reply has been reeceived. -

ALrRED E. GREEN.
ANas RivLE, NOv. 27th, 1888. Methodist Mni8ter, Naas River.

ELIZABETH SAVAGE,
Witne88.

CYopy.]
SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT BY MR. GREEN.

GREENVILLE,«NAAS RIrER, Feb. 4th, 1889.

I declare that I was on board the steamer Grappler at

Fishery Bay, going down to Part Simpson; and, as the steamer

was about to start, Mr. L E. Croasdaile came on board, and

told me that he had received authority from Indian Superin-

tendant Powell to decide as to whether the Methodist or the

Church of England should have, school and preaching in the

villiage of Kit-laeh-damux; and, for that purpose, he was going

NC~

Ïi
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to call the men of Kit-lach-damux, on the following Saturday,
to vote. He further said that he had informed Mr. Shutt and
Rev. Mr. Collison, of the Church Missionary3 Society, and thos,
two gentlemen had already gone up to Kit.:laçh-damux. I
tested against the whole arrangement as being unfair, as no a
quarter of the people ofthe village were tjen at home; and,fur-
ther, I protested against the~ people being called down thirty
miles to vote ; and, also, against Mr. Shuttand Mr. Collison hav-
ing been specially favored with early information, so that\they
could go and try to influence the vote of these poor peple.
I pointed out that we had the first ,school in that village, and
announced my determination of reporting the matter to my
Chairman, Rev. T. Crosby, which I did.

Dr. Powell tried for a long time to work us out of Kit-lach-
damux.

Signed,
ALFRED E. GREEN.

Methodi8t Misionary.

Copy.]

MR CROSBY'S LETTER TO MR. ,CROASDAILE, re VOTE

ON THE SCHOOL AT KIT-LACII-DAMUX.

PORT SIMPSON, July 12th, 1881.

MR. CROASDAILE.

SIR,-

I am informed by Mr. Green that you stated, on his
leaving Naas on Saturday last, that this week you should call
the people from Kit-wan-silh and Kit-laeh-damux to a meeting
at your fishery to take their vote, which is to decide as to which
mission sehool the said people prefer. There is to be only one
sùch mission school at each village; and that you have been
authorized by Dr. Powell to settle this whole matter. Allow
me the liberty of saying that, in the first place, I do not think
this is the proper time for such vote, as the people are very
much scattered, and-but very few of them could be got together.

In the next place, I do not think that the fishery is the
proper place for such a meeting, as the distance from their
homes is so great that they will not come ; ,and, again, all parties
concerned should be notified of such a meeting, and ample time
given, so that they could be there. Such a meeting should be
held in the village, and a majority vote of all male members, over
twenty-one years of age, should settle it.

As we have had school at the said villages for about four
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yearsXwhen the people were home), and this before any other
Churdh had a school there. In the name of the Methodigt Church
we demand the courtesy and fair treatment in this matter that

î' ýwe have been wont to receive from the Government in other
parts of the Dominion, and feel compelled to protest against
the order in such a way for the purpose xtentioned.

i , Sir,

Y*ourstruly,

T. CaosBY.

LETTER FROM MR. CROSBY TO DR. POWELL, re
SCHOOL AT UPPER -NAAS VILLAGE.

PORT SIMPSON, Sept. 1882.

J. W. Pows1, M.D.

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your
letter of the 7th August, in which you call my attention
to certain remarks maden your last report to the Superinten-
dent-General of Indian Affairs, with regard to the state of
affairs at the upper village on the Naas River, and also to a
recommendation from the Superintendent-General that the
two missionary societies, Anglican and Methodist, who have
stations in various places, should come to some mutual under-
standing as to the field.to be occupied by each.

In reply, I would say that I think you have in- some measure
misunderstood the Indians of the Upper Naas villages when'
yo» say that the Indians urge the want of harmony between
th& two societies as an objection to, securing either. The
facts of the case are, we were the first to send teachers to those
villages, and were well received by the natives; and the presept
opposition to Church and school I believé to be owing not to
the existence of two churches among them, but through the
influence of a low, wicked white man named Redgraves, who
lived at Kit-lach-damux for several years. Until that time our
school there did well. I much regret that the apparent opposi-
tion bet,*een the two societies should exist, and I have asked
that the missionaries of the O. M. S. present a plan that'might
serve as a basis for the division of the field, while we would be

prepared to offer our views and to refer the matter to the mis-
sionary societies for, ratification. Our plans have in several

t1ý 1instances been seriously interfered witha by the other Church.
Last fall we left Kit-lach-damux, thinkirig it unadvisable that
two should be working in one little village, but during all the
time we were absent the place was also unoccupieg by the other

s'



25

Church, while immediately after a visit Mr. Robinson and I
made there a few weeks ago, Bishop Ridley sent a native
teacher to begin work.

The Forks of the Skeena was one of our stations, and a mis-
sionary teacher resided among them some time. For want of a.
suitable man it was unoeeupied for somnething over a year, yhen
Mr. Tate was appointed. While Mr. Tate was -on his way to
take up his residence there, Bishop Ridley took Mr. Collinson
from Metlakahtla and sent him to occupy the Forks. Then
the fact of the Bishop's building his house at Port Simpson
has suggested the idea of'opposition at least to the minds of the
Indians. However, in spite of these difficulties, I trust a better
state of things may soon be brought about.

Yours truly,

T. CRosBY.

Copy.]

LETTER OF JAMES DEANS TO REV. T. CROSBY re
SKIDEGATE SCHOOL, ETC.

SKIDEGATE TowN, Nov. 19th, 1888.

lo the REV. THOS. CROSBY.

DEAR SiR,-

In answer to your few questions in connection with the
Indian tribes of Queen Charlotte's Islands,-more particularly
those of the Skidegate village,-I send you the following: As
I quote from memory, I may be a little astray in the dates. If
I happen to err in the dates, the statements are not the less
tiue. In the suwmer of 1879,I happened to be on these islands
in July and in November. During my stay, I had many a
conversation with these Indians, more especially the Skide-
gates, who told me they had repeatedly requested Dr. Powell
to send them a teacher, and that he had failed to do so, and
that he also had pronised to send them one at a given time,
which was passed, and none bad come. They further asked me
if I would go and see Dr. Powell when I got to Victoria, and
remind.him of his prômise, which I did, and got a very unfavor-
able answer; the exact words I forget. At another time,-I
forget the date,-they told me that they had Mr. Collinson, from
Massett, a few times, and Mr. Sneath, connected with the
Anglican Church. The former had built a small church, in
which servicewas held. They said after Mr. Sneath left they
had been without a teacher of any sort for a long time. They
further told me that a number of tbem, while at Port Simpson,
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f had applied to Mr. Crosby for a teacher, who had refused
to send one, because the other Chureh had the field, and he
could not; send one. After much pressing, they told me. Mr.
Crosby said he would be in Victoria, where he would see Dr.
powell, and, if he could, he would send a teacher. They further
saidthat Dr. Powell, during his visit, had made lots of promises,
whieh he had not fulfilled; amongst the number was a promise

.. o send medicines, which he had never done, and that they could
nver.believe a word he ever said.· They said they hoped Mr.
Crosby would keep his promises better than the doctor did.

When I, returned to Victoria, I called on Dr. Powell, and
inquired about the medicine; he said he would have sent some
medicine long ago, but could not, because there was no one to
look after it. A year or two afterward, when Mr. Robinson
was teacher of Skidegate, I happened to see Mr. Robinson, who
complained bitterly of the failure of medicine being sent; he
told me he had wrote repeatedly for medicine, but none had
ever been sent. He asked me if I would go, while in Victoria,
and get the doctor tosend him some, however little; and, to show
the effects of not having any,he took me to see a m and two
women who appeared to be very sick. The man told me he
believed if he could get a bottle of pain killer, he would be well.

SOn returning to the oil works, I sent him a bottle or two. He

gt better but the women both died; for one of them he felt vr
bd ;he said ife only had a little medicine of a sort name
fohe believed he could- have saved her life. When I returned

to Victoria,the doctor was absent; when he returned, laid the
case before him. Dringothehe following summer, a quantity of
medicine was sent; bndoo late to save thewoman, who had
died a few menthsbefor the medicines had arrived. •During

gmy stay, I was frequently asked why it was that the. Haidas
never could get anything from the Indian Department; other
tribes, they sid, got medicine and'seeds, as well as a number
ofmother thLs,y ahite they got nothing; was it, they asked,
because they were Methodists-or what ? Th y said if Mi-.
Harrion had come to them, they would have been content; but
he failed to ome, and they wanted a teacher, and so were
glad to accept the first who, offered. The Gold Harbors alsoi
complained to me; they said they had moved round from their
original homes on the west coast, in order that they themselves
might be employed at. the oil works, while their children would.
have the benefit of any teacher who migrht be sent; they had
waited patiently for Dr. Powell to fulfil his promises, which,
had never been attended to any more than if they never existed.

In conclusion, I may add a few remarks gathered from an
acquaintance, with these people, coveringm a period of thirty-
five.years. When I first knew them they were a lot of thieves

t -
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of the first water; chastity was a virtue unkpown among
them; always at war among themselves, and neighboors, in
order to get slaves, they earned for themselves the name of
Arabs of the Northern Coasts. In 1869-70 I was engaged in
opening an anthracite coal mine, then again this sumner, 1888,
I have been busy getting down coal from the same mines;
while there it was necessary for me to .employ a number of
these people, and I was. truly surprised to find such a change
for the better. At the former date they stole everything they
could lay hands on. At the latter date they not only did notsteal
anything, but they -returned what they and their fathers stole
before them. All this change I can certify to has been brought
about.by, the teachings and influence of the Methodists, who
during the past few years have labored among them. Not
only have they advanced in these virtues, but they are having
better houses, and are gradually assuming cleanlier habits. (
have traveled a great deal on this coast in my connexion with
the coal mines, of which I am overseer, and as assistant geolo-
gist on the Dominion Survey, and also on the Indian Depart-
ment. In all my travels I have noticed that the Indians who
are under the teachings of the Methodist Church have nade
the most progress. I also have noticed, and I ani sorry tô say
it is se, that our Indian Department seems to 'me to favor all
other denominations more than the Methodists. These are niy
views given without partiality. I arn not a Methodist. I
belong to the auld kirk of Scotland.

I am, dear sir,

Yours respectfully,

JAMEs DEANS,

Sup't. Cowgate Coal Mines, near Skidegate.

Copy.] -

STATEMENT OF CHIEFS AND 0THERtS AT SKIDE-
GATE, QUEEN CHARLOTTE'S ISLANDS.

SKIDEGATE, Q. C. Is., Nov. 27th, 1888.

We, the chiefs and principal men of Skidegate village, in
council assembled, wish to state that about the year 1877, on
Dr. Powell's first visit to us, he came in a warship, and met the
chiefs in Nin-ging-wash's house. He spoke strongly against
our women going to Victoria for evil purposes. We said we
had no teacher to teach us better. He said to us that if there
were no teacher sent by either of the Churches who have mis-

oD
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sionaries up this coast, he would in the name of the Government
or Queen send a teacher and build school-house. He said the
teacher would- come on a man-of-war, and bring hoes, and
spades, anI seeds, and also help us to make gardens. On his
(Dr. Powell's) second visit he met us in Chief Skidegate's house,
and we wanted to know about the teacher, why he had not
come. He said now we had made his heart glad on two occa-
sions, because we had said we wanted to go in the good way.
He said that he would see that we had a school and a teacher,
who would also help us with our gardens. B~e promised to
send us plenty of medicin'es for the sick. When Mr. Geo.

- Robinson, Methodist teacher, came here in the year 1882, we
met in council and asked Mr. Robinson to write for medicines,
tools and seeds, as Dr. Powell had promised to send them to us.
Mr. Robinson wrote, but Dr. Powell never answered the letter.
The following summer Mr. James Deans came with Judge
Swann.^ We met in council in Chief Skidegate's house. We
-called. Mr. Deans and Mr. Robinson,, and asked them to write
again to Dr. Powell for medicines and tools, and two' wbeel-
barrows, so that we could fix our gardens and our roads. Some
time afterward a very small box of medicine came, but no
tools, and a letter came saying that the medicines cost $50, and
we were all very tauch surprised that it should cost so much.
Mr. Robinson-said that there were scarcely any of the medi-
cines came that he asked for. When Rev. Geo. F.-Hopkins,
Methodist missidnary, came here, we met agajn, and hd him
write and ask for the same things. Some time after a 'small
box of medicine came, but no tools. A good while after we
had Mr. Hopkins write again. This time a small box of*medi-
cine came, and a small package of turnip seed; so small that
Mr. Hopkins could only give a teaspoonful to each, so we think
that nearly all Dr. Powell's promises are broken. When we
first saw Dr. Powell we thought he had no favor to one cburch
or the other; but we have watched these things, and see to our
great sorrow and surprise, that it is because we are Methodists
that we do not get anything that he promised. We beard froin
Mr. McGregor and other white mén at the Oil Works that
$40,000 a year were spent on the Indians in British Columbia,
so we were not afraid to ask for these little things, for we
thought there was plenty of money with which to.get them.
Having asked Dr. Powell a good many times to help us about
school and tools and he did not do so, we have only to say now
that we have a good teacher, and our church is here among us
which our own maoney has helped, to build. And when we
wanted to make roads we had to get old pieces of iron to make
tools to lwork with. In closing, we would like to -ask if Dr.
Powell~bas forgotten where we live. We stilllive at Skidegate.

SM
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And does he know what Church we belong to, and who has

taught us to iniprove our homes, and instructed us and our

children in the right way ? And we would ask him what is

the reason he has not sent us help, as he promised, for school
and. with toôls, garden seeds, etc. We all think that it' is
because we are Methodists. We had heard that the Queen, and

Dr. Powell, and the Government were all Christian people, and
we thought that when we left our old way and became, Chris-
tians we should be treated by them fairly, as they promised;
but now we see that because we are Methodists we have no
attention from them, the same as the people have who belong
to the Church of England. We have heard that ]7'r., Powell
helped the Rev. Mr. Hall, of the Church of England,^at Alert
Bay, to build a sawmill. This is what opened our eyes to see
his favoritism to that Church.

Signed on behalf of the people,

Their Marks. Their Marke.

CHIEF SKIDEGATE, X JOHN GWOL-ENS, x

PHILLIF JACKSON, X ADAMCOW-GAH, x

ToM WHE-AH, x WILLIAM WILSON, x

THoMAs BEAR-SKIN, x Amos Russ, x

JOHN DIL-SKU-GIS, X MOSES MCKAY, x

GEORGE JEB-SON, X ALFUED GREEN, x

Amos DO-AU-ALL, X ZACHARIAS NICOLAS X

Witn(sse8 to Signatures, Tios. CROSBY.
W A. N. MILLER.

STATEMENT 0F REV. G. F. H{OPKINS.

MSSIONARx AT PORT ESSIANGTON, FORMERLY 0F SKIDEGATE,

QO U-A; X CHARLOTTESCISLANDS.NCOLS

PORT ESSINGTON, B.C., Jan. 4, 1889.

Rev.~ T. Crosby,

DEAR SiR,-

Below you will find a few statements in reference to

governmental treatment of the land question, administration of

justice, etc., on the north-west coast of British Columbia.

On January 13th, 188.5, a letter was written -by me, by
request of the Skidegate Council, to the Superintendent of
Indian Affairs, Victoria, 1. W. Powell, M.D. The letter asked
for some tools and implements needed for the village. In

answer, a letter dated May 7th, 1885, was duly received, stating

"That there is no appropriation during the present year by

which the articles alluded to in your communication could be
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furnished." But, in the fall of the same{year, several similar
articles were supplied to the Bella Bella village. Why the pre-
ference was made I do not know, unless it be that the Skide-
gate people were so isolated that it was thought best to refuse
them, thinking that no one would ever find out the contrary.

This last summer (July, 1888) I sent a request for medicines
for this village to Mr. O. Todd, Indian Agent, living at Metla-
kahtla. Receiving no answer nor medicines, I sent on Sep-
tember 6th another letter to him. Stili I had no reply. On
September 29th I wrote direct to Superintendent I. W.
Powell, M.D., and by first opportunity the medicines were sent.
But Mr. Todd, Indian agent, who did not know that the Super-
intendent of Indian Affairs was sending medicines to me, met
me,and stated that he had received my letters asking for medi-
cines, but that he had not forwarded them because there had
been a Dr. Haddon, of the Church Missionary Society, at
Egsington.during the summer. So he (Mr. Todd) thought there
w no need of my having any, as he said. In my letters to
him I had plainly stated that mbst ofthe Indian villagesc here,
besides other Indians employed on the river parts of the -year
came to me for medicines, thus leaving little or no excuse
for Mr. Todd thinking we did not have any need for medicines
It only seemed to be a desire on his part to force the Methodist
Indians to go to the Church Missionary Society people for
medicines.

In the early part of 1885, an Indian, Samuel Cross, of Gold
Harbor, Queen Charlotte's Islands, asked me to go with him to
see Judge Elliott, then the stipendiary magistrate for the north-
west coast, in order that a summons might be obtained for one
lHoatska, of Clue, Queen Charlotte's Islands, who had been
making and selling liquor at Clue (intoxicant, known as Hoo-
chin-new). The Judge issued the regular papers, but the case
was never taken up, although the Judge himself came over to
Queen Charlotte's Islands on a steamer on his way to Victoria,
in May or June of the same year.

While the steamer was anchored at the Skidegate Oil Works,
two other Indians, Amos Russ and Moses McKay, both of
Skidegate, Queen Charlotte's Islands, went to the Judge to lay
information concerning a murder which had occurred at Gold
Hrbor a few months previous. (I was present, interpreting
for the Judge and the Indians.) After hearing the statements,
Judge Elliott said thatrhe could not make out the legal papers,
as he was on an "unofficial trip" (notwithstanding that the
Queen Charlotte's Islands were in his jurisdiction), but that he
would make a note of it, which he did, and attend to it at the
earliest opportunity. But, though three years have since
passed, that opportunity seemed never to have corne, as nothing
was ever done in the matter.
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In the fali of 1883, -J. W. McKay came up. to Port ,Simpson
froin Metlakahtla He called a meeting of the village, and
stated he ha<h be~en sent as Indian agent for the north-west
coast. After listening to his remarks, the Indians requested
that Mr. McKay meet them on the next day to confer with
them. He complied. The next day several Indians spoke in
reference to the land question, andone of them, Gempk, in the
midst of his speech, removed with his cane an 'oil-cloth coat
that had been spread over a large stone, on which was printed,
in chalk, "This was our fathers' land." Mr. McKay read it,
and at the close of the speech, and of the meeting, remarked
about it as being very ingeniously arranged. He also promised
the meeting (being composed of most of the men of the village),
that ds he had heard their words, and admitted' the justice of
their requests, from their standpoint, to place the subject before
the Indian Department, and do all in bis power to aid them;
but he never sent any word to them in reference to the affair,
nor did he ever return himself. (The verbatim report of both
the above meetings are in your-Mr. Crosby's-own copy book.)

I know it to be a fact that the Bella Bella, Bella Coola, Port
Simpson and Hydah Indians (having labored amongst all these
tribes), all lay claim to the land as having been theirs for
generations back. They wonder in what way the Government
claim to own the land; you never conquered them by war, nor
treated with them for it, nor bought it from them or their
fathers.

Hoping this may be of service,

I am,

Yours fraternally,

GEORGE F. HOPKINS,
Methodist Missionary.

STATEMENT OF REV. W. H. PIERCE,

NATIVE MISSIONARY, UPPER SKEENA.

The land question is not a new thin. Long before the
white man made his appearance in this country our ancestors
claimed the land as theirs. God, the Great Father of all the
natives, gave it us. When the Hudson's Bay Company started
a trading-post on Naas River and at Port Simpson, they gave
many presents to our Chiefs, thus acknowledging that the
natives were the owners of the land. But since the Govern-
ment told us that we have no title to the land, trouble has
sprung up in the hearts of all our people. For many years
now we have been at peace with al the tribes along the coast,
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for the missionaries taught us to be friends to everybody. The
whole trouble is because the Government has not given us
justice. I was on Naas when Dr. Powell came up some years
ago. ie met the Naas Indians in the Methodist school-house..
I interpreted his words to them, when they asked him to whom
the land, mountains, rivers, berry-grounds belonged. Dr.
Powell replied that the mountains, salmon, riter, and berry-
grounds all belonged to them. It is neither Mr. Crosby, Green,
or Jennings, nor any of the Methodist missionaries, who have
caused all this trouble during the last four or five years. But
we firmly believe the Government has done it. There is a very
strong feeling among the Upper Skeena Indians about this
land question. Years ago our people never thought the Gov-
ernment would trouble them or allow any one else to do so. It
is only by the advice of the missionaries that the natives have
so long been kept from shedding blood, on account of the way
they are treated by the Govemment. Many of our friends
1have already gone to Alaska, because of the unkind treatment
about their land. They were told they had not one inch of
ground by Attorney-General Davie. This made their hearts
very sore, and we think that many more will go away also
if there is not a just settlement of this question. All our
people want is their rights. Let the Government admit the
title and.make a just agreement about the land, then the people
will be satisfied if they are allowed to have the land they
need. But I beg of you, sir, to do all you can to bring about a
speedy settlement of this very trying question. Two years
ago I wrote to Dr. Powell for some medicine for the Kit-ze-
guela people. He neither answered My letter nor sent me
medicine until it had been brought up and discussed in the
Methodist Conference, New Westminster, in May, 1888. His
excuse for not complying with niy request was, that I was not
a white man, and was not capable of dispensing medicine. I
did not ask Dr. Powell for anything I did not perfectly under-
stand. What was such articles as salts, senna, castor oil, cough
mixture, linseed, etc.? Being blankly refused by the Indian
Department, I bought with my own money $20 worth of
medicine from T. Shotbolt, druggist, in-Victoria. During the
winter following, there was a great amount of sickness on the
Upper Skeena Mission, none of which-the people-received a
teaspoonful of medicine from the Indian Department. At
Hough-wil-get station, 30 died; at Kishpiax, 46 died; and at
Kit-ze-guela, 32 died. I think that fully one-half of these dear

people would not have died if Dr. Powell had given medicines.
On the other hand, the Church of England got all the
medicine they asked for from Dr. Powell. This shows very
plainly that the Government is dealing rightly to one Church
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and wrongly to the other. This I saw with my own eye.
The Rev. Mr. Field, Church of England missionary at Hazelton,
Skeena Forks, bas received from the Government great praise
for the belp he rendered this summer during the so-called
"'Indian Trouble," while the Methodist missionary of the Upper
Skeena, who kept open house for all or any of the Government
officiails who might wish to stop there-the Indian Agent,
Judge Fitzstubbs, and the special constables have, at different
times, used the Methodist mission-bouse at Kit-ze-guela-but
instead of thanks or praise, the Methodist missionary has been
sneered at and lied about by these very persons. In fact, it is
spread all over the country that the Methodist missionary
would not proceed on Sunday without extra pay.

W. H. PIERCE.

Copy]
STATEMENT OF W. H. DEMPSTER, J.P.

1. The chief cause of disturbance in the Indians' minds was
the disruption between Mr. Duncan and Bishop Ridley, and
the action the Government took in that dispute.

2. The present staff of officers are very dilatory in enforcing
the law; it is only by urgent solicitation they can be persuaded
to inquire into evils which are increasing to an alarming extent
since their residence among us.

3. The acts of the officials in this part of the country have a
tendeùcy to weaken the confidence of the Indians in the justice
of our Government.

4. I believe, if Judge Graham had remained on the Upper
Skeena, the trouble which has cost the country so much would
have been averted.

5. The official who has taken Judge Graham's place in the
interior may have some difficulty in gaining the respect of the
Indians, and their peaceable submission to law.

6. If the Tsimpshean peninsula had been given the Tsimpshean
Indians residing thereon, less the land taken by the whites, it
would have satisfied the people, and prevented the exodus to
Alaska.

7. I believe the Indians' confidence, peace, and goodwill, can
be secured by a fair, just, and impartial treatment with them.

8. The action of the Government commission in throwing the
odium of the Duncan-Bishop quarrel on the shoulders of the
Methodist missionaries, showed their preference to one Church
and prejudice to the other.

9. Many of the Indians are of the opinion they are not impar-
tially treated by the representatives of the Government.

10. During my residence of ten years I have not known the
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Methodist missionaries to advance other teaching ihan that
which is calculated to advance the -best interests of the people.
I have known them Vo ta&ve many hard-fought-battles for right,
whieh neverfails to meet he displeasure of evil-doer

11. It has never been necessary for the Government te send
a gun-boat to put down distu*hance on the Methodist missions:
their work is generally prosperous. I believe them to be doing
more good with less money than any other missionaries on this
coast.

12. I believe the Methodist Indians are loyal to their Queen
and her Government; they require to be treated kindly, and
made feel the Government are interested in their welfaré.

W. E DEMPSTER,
OcTorn 27th, 1858. Salmon Packer, Aberdeen, B.C.

STATEMENT OF GEO. ROBINSON.

METHODIST MISsIoNARY TEACHER, KIT-A-MAAT.

In the annual report 'of the Honorable Minister of Indian -
Affairs, for the year 1881, page 152, the following recommenda-
tion may be found in regard to Skidegate, Queen Charlotte's
Islands-

"At Skidegate (near which is another important Hydah
village called Gold Harbor) there never has been any Christian
mission, but the natives are exceedingly well-behaved, and far
superior to many of the Southern tribes, who had possessed
much greater advantages. The only request they had to make
of me was that I sbould send them a teacher, and aid them in
building.a school-house. They were greatly desirous of emu-
lating the Tsimpsheans of Metlakahtla, and wondered why they
had been left so long unprovided for. I promised to represent
their wants to the Government, and ara of opinion that there
is no place in the Province where a grant for school purposes
and providing Indians with the means of education, would be
so satisfactorily expended as at Skidegate."

Also, see page 158 of the same report: "One or two efficient
sehools are required on Queen Charlotte's Islands, and also on
Naas River."

I was given to understand, by the Rev. Thomas Crosby, that
Dr. Powell, when told in the year 1879 that I was ready to
teach an Indian school, said: Send me (i.e., the writer) to the
Upper Naas. Aeordingly, I threw up my situation in Victoria,
cand proceeded to Port Simpson; taught the school there for
five-and-a-half months, thence went to Naas River. In the
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following fail, 1880, on the strength of Dr. Powell's promises,
I taught school on the Upper Naas at Kit-lach-damux Indian
village, having an average attendance of about nineteen in the
December quarter, and of twenty-four in the March quarter.
I sent in the first Quarterly Report to the Indian Department,
which was rejected, and consequently no grant was made, so I
did not think fit to send in any more reports under such cir-
cumstances. Dr. Powell's reason for rejection was because two
missionary societies were contending for the possession of the
same place-the one a Methodist, the other an Episcopalian.
Now, I was the only white missionary there, and the only
person that could read at al]. Hence, the only reason for with-
holding a grant was partiality to the Episcopal Church.

In regard to Skidegate, Queen Charlotte's Islands, I have
already given you Dr. Powell's words from the Blue Book. I
proceeded .after that date, in the autumn of 1882, to that place;
the people subscribed more than $300 toward the erectioi of a
school-house. I being the first white man to take up a per-
manent residence in their village, the Missionary Society of the
Methodast Church supplemented the Indians' subscription and
also supported me, but the Indian Department washed its
hands of the whole affair because I was a Methodist, and
declined to grant anything in aid of a school in the village of
Skidegate during my stay therein. I was given to understand
by the Rev. Thos. Crosby, that Dr. Powell objected to the
Methodists sending a teacher to Skidegate, although he had
already given his sanction to Mr. Crosby sending one in July
of 1882, in presence of two gentlemen, who will state the-matter
on oath, if required.

Sometime after receiving a letter from the Rev. Mr. Collison
(of the Church of England Missionary Society), promising to

go and take charge of the Skidegate field of labor in casthe
Methodists withdrew from.it, I tried to prepare the people of
Skidegate. for such a change, but failed; owing, no doubt, to
their want öf 'olfidence in the Church Missionary Society.
However,:I continued advising the people to put themselves
under the Church Missionary Society, fully expecting that
Mr. Collison would be sent over, and so upon one of my trips
to the coast I called at Metiakahtla to see if an agreement
could be arrived at, when, to my astonishment, I was told that
Mr. Collison had been stationed at Naas River, and that he had
no authority for writing to me about Skidegate, etc. Messrs.
Dunn and Praeger, being present, of tbe Church Missionary
Society.

Such being the case,-Mr. Collison's blundering on the one
hand, and the antipathy of the Skidegate Indians to the Bishop
of Caledonia on the other, together with the fact that without
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one dissentient voice they all declared themselves for me as the

representative of Methodism-I do iot--cainnot see how the

Indian De p&rtment could justify itself inc withholding a rant

to the Methodist Church to aid in building a sehool at.Skide-

ate, seein thet it had already promised the Church Missionary

oiety, t9rough its representativé, aid forsuch a purpose.

Such artiality as this was so apparent at the time that it

seemed as if Dr. Powell was always approachableby a Church-

mani but would hardly deal civilly with a Methodist.

Upox leaving Skidegate, Queen Charlotte's Islands, I went

to Kt-a-maat, and found there.a so-called -illegal counel formed

after the Metlakahtla fashion. I wrote Dr, Powell, requesting

that he open the way sa that the people of Kit-a-maat might

have a legal cuneil established, (offer'ing myself as an agent

without pay) to conform to the requirements of the indian

Act. Dr. Powell's replies have been'altogether unsatisfactory,

no way being opened up to grant the request as above.

I also have applied for seed potatoes and a grindstone at

different times, owing to the great poverty of the people, but

the·request might as- well have gone to the dead-letter office.

On the other hand, the heathen village of Kitlup claim to have

their grindstone from the Indian Department, thereby leading

the Indians here to think that heathens are preferred to Chris-

tians by the Indian Department.

It would only be right to state that I have been supplied

once a year with a small uantity of drugs, and a still smaller

quantity of garden seeds, or the use of the Indians, from the

Indian Department.
To the best of my belief, I affirm the above to be a true

,statement. (Signed) GEo. ROBINSON.

PORT SImsoN, Oct. 23, 1888.

Copy.]
EXTRACT OF LETTER FROM REV. MR. COLLISON

TO T. CROSBY.

(About going to work at Skidegate, Queen 'Charlotte's Island,

while Mr. Robinson was there).

METLAHTLA, October 13th, 1883.

My DEAR Mp. CRosBY,-
As I understand you have embarked by the Otter to

pay a visit to Skîdegate, and, I presume, you will thence sail

for Victoria, I am desirous of sending you a few lines in refer-

ence to Skidegate. I informed you in answer to your letter of

1



inquiry, that our Society would, no doubt, be willing to take
up 'the work thèe; I now-desire confidentially to inform you
that I may be able, if necessary, to occupy that post myself if
only I can obtain the consent of the Bishop as Chairman of

-the Conference, but I cannot consult with him until bis return
from the Skeena.. ... . . . ..

W. H. COLLISON.

Copy.]
MR. CROSBY'S REPLY.

PORT SIMPSON, October 30th, 1883.

MY DEAR Mn. COLLISoN,-

Your letter of 13th instant is to hand.. ....
As it bas been our custom at. all other places, a subscription has
been taken up among the people themselves, backed by a small
grant from the Missionary Society, and lumber bas been bought
for a small cliurch and teacher's house, whieh we are to build
at once. Still we desire to have in view nothing but the glory
of God and the salvation of men, and if you willmeet the
Skidegate people, and in presence of our . missionary, place
before them the fact that you are prepared to live among them,
and a majority will agree to the change, the Church Missionary
Society refunding to us the amount of outlay, and giving us
assurance tlhat the place will be permanently occupied, we will
withdraw our missonary.from the field, take the Upper Naas
where he (Mr. Robinson) was formerly stationed, and where be
would do good, and where we have continued to keep an agent
with entire satisfaction. We think the Church Missionary
Society should leave us in undisturbed possession of the Upper
Ngas. . . . . . . . . . . • .

Yours very truly,

T. CRÔSBY.

Copies of this were sent to Mr. Robinson, and he asked the
Indians to go in with Mr. Collison should he come. In the
Spring of 1884 he called at Metlakatlah to see Mr. Collison,
but found he bad môved to the mouth of the Naas, Kincolith,
to settle.

T. CROsBY.

37
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IETTER OF CHIEFS AT PORT SIMPSON TO THE
COMMISSIONERS OF 1887.

PORT SIMPSON,'Oct. 8th, 1887.

To the Members of the Land Commission. "

We are pleased to meet you, for we have looked forward
to your'coming as a peaceable settlement, of what bas been a
great trouble to us for years. It bas made our hearts bleed to

e treated as we havpbeen about our land, the inheritance
which God gave to our fathers, and it was for this reason we
sent three.of our number to Ottawa, in 1885, to meet Sir John
Macdonald. He promised us in fair words we should have
what we needed, but nothing was done. The servants of the
Goverfment sent here havpnever treated us like men. Mr.
O'Reilly came here in 1881, without -sufficent notice to our
people, and hence there were not many home, and when he met
us he would not give time for our chiefs to speak, nor listen to
'our wants, but went on and, as he says, laid out reserves,
although we protested in ,writing against it. Now we want
you to see what he bas done. He bas taken twelve bouses of
chief Legaie's tribe and -given them to the Hudson's Bay Coim-
pany; and although we sent letters to Dr. Powell and to the
fHudson's Bay Company against it, no notice was taken of it,
and we were .told that the Company's line commenced at
Legaic's pole. Now if you look at this-you will set that it is
not just; and as the Company could take plenty of land to the
east, up the harbor, we cannot. tell why they wished to enclose
the bouses on our land; and we were told by Dr. Powell when
be visited us, that the Hudson's Bay Company's land'Would not
come more than a few feet west of their fence. Then all at
once we found a man here surveying for the Government, he
said, all round the north-east side of the harbor, and we were
told that this land had all been claimed by the white chiefs in
Victoria, and they said they had bought it from the Govern-
ment, and this before our claim bad been settled. We wrote
about this, but receivedfno reply.

In the fall of 1883,lDr. Powell came up in a war-ship to
Metlakahtla, but we think he was ashamed to come up here,
for bis words to us had all been broken, so he sent Mr. Mc-
Kay as agnt. fie met us, and listened kindly to our trouble,
and said or claim was just: We said if be would go and lay
it before the Government and get it settled, we should then be
glad to have him come back. He went away and never came
back, and we thought it was because he wished to carry out our
wishes that he was not allowed to come back.
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And again, the war-ship came to Metlakahtla, and we wère
told that the Chief of the Government, Mr. Davie, said that not
one inch of the ground belonged to the Tsimpseans; and then
you know there was trouble at Metlakahtla about the two acres
oh Mission Point. Al this sending of war-ships, and putting
Metlakahtla people in gaol, and the way we were treated about
our land, cause us great trouble and made our hearts weak.
Our Council, that had for years kept the roads in good order,
and built bridges, and endeavored to repress imnIorality among
our people, was put down .by Judge Elliott, who said we were
no council; and now you see Our village is in a bad state, and
our young people, who once had great respect for the village
council, have none now. We have wondered what would come
next. We have been put down and discouraged by those who
should have encouraged and helped us; but we have been kept
by our teachers and our profession of religion from breaking
the laws, and they have always encouraged us to believe that
we should have our rights.

When Mr. Jemmett came to survey on the Naas, we sent him
a letter protesting against bis worl until we had the land
matter settled. But he went on, and we are told that our fish-
ing stations which he marked off are but one chain in depth
from the water's edge, and on this we were to be allowed ta
build no houses. This seemed very strange to us, for here our
fathers used to live two or three months in the yeàr, and we
had large houses on this ground long before Mr. O'Reilly or
Mr. Jemmett were born. This made us feel sore and angry, and
had we been as we once were, we should have been tempted to
fight; but no; we prayed to God to help us, and waited, and
now we do hope yov will see that we have at least two chains'
width in our fishing claims on the Naas. Al the Upper Naas
people will agree to this, as they know it is our just right.
When Mr. Jemmett came here to our own village and com-
menced to survey and take the line ,from Legaic's pole, we
protested against it, and called him to a large meeting, and told
him we did not wish him ta go on with the survey. fHe said
he would send our words to the proper quarter, and the matter
would be attended to.' In the meantime he went on with his
work,'and we never heard that any notice was taken of our
protest.

Feeling that all our attempts ta get a hearing had fiiled, and
that some of our people were becoming exasperated, and,
desiring to prevent an outbreak, we decided to make one more
effort, and, calling a large meeting last January, we appointed
a deputation, consisting of 'our missionary and two nien of our
tribes, to go at once to Victoria, in company with Mr. Green
and soie Naas chiefs, to wait upon the Government. Though
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in the midst of a great storm, our deputation proceeded without
delay to Victoria, when, strange ta say, the -Governient did
not wish to meet the missionaries, and would not allow them
to be present at their interview with the Indians. We have
not forgotten that yet. .The Government promised that a land
commission should be sent to put our land matters right. We
expected it here in the spring, but instead of that we were
surprised in the early summer by the arrival of Mr. Tuck and
a party of men to go on with the survey. A meeting was
called of the few people at home, and we protested against his
surveying the land. Mr. Tuck said, in reply, that he could not
stop bis work, but.he promised that our words should besent to
the Government. And now that you have come, we ask you to

be good enough to take time and listeni to our wishes and hear
the words of our chiefs, and we do hepÈpetht your visit will be
the teans of bringing peace and confidence to our hearts again.
We welcome you to ur village, and will do all we can to make
your stay pleasant and happy. And do not feel sorry if we
have to say some words you do not like to hear.

We suppose you have all the papers concerning our land
question, and our letters of protest before you, but we thought
it well to call your atention in this letter to some of the eircum-
stances of dur grievances.

As you are no doubt aware, the Government have never had
to send a war-ship to us, and, although a judge lives here, he
would have no work to do were it not that the Government has
given the Hudson's Bay Company license to -sell liquor, and bad
white men come here and get drunk and then give it to our
people. Thishas given us great trouble. For many years the
Hudson's Bay Company sold ano liquor here, and our young men
were safe from temptation, and bad men did not dare to trouble
our wives and daughters, but we fear for all this now. This is
aside from the land question with which you come to deal,
but it is a thing that troubles us much, and we hope you will
do something to have it put away from our midst.

At your pleasure we eall a public meeting. We have had
letters from the Government ,to tell us of your coming, and we
hope youwill find time to meet us before you go to Naas, and
as a large fiumber of our men have been àwaiting for your
coming, and would like to be away soon.

On behalf of the people of Port Simpson,

Signed.
Their Marks.

PAUL LEGAIC. X
DAVID SwANSON. x
ALBERT McMILLAN. x
WILIAM KELLY. y
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LETTER OF PORT SIMPSON CHIEFS AND OTHERS
IN REPLY TO COMMISSIONER CORNWALL'S

SPEECH, AT CLOSE OF PORT SIMPSON
MEETING.

[NoTE.-This letter, with the exception of one short para-
graph, is excluded from the Commissioners' Report.]

PoRT SIMPSON, B.C.,
October 24th, 1887.

To C. F. CORNWALL and J. P. PLANTA,

• Land Commissioners.

We were very much surprised when wve heard at the close
of the Commission that we would not be allowed to say a word
in reply to the gentlemen of the Commission, so we take this
way to let you know that our hearts were sore at some of the
words that were said. We would say, also, in the first place,
that Chief Doudoward, who was in the inidst of his speech
when the meeting closed the first evening, is one of our
hereditary chiefs, and a man of influence among us. Letters
about this Commission had been addressed to him by Hon. Mr.
Davie, and Hon. Mr. Robson, and we had chosen him to speak
for·us. 'We were surprised that the next morning, just at the
opening of the meeting, when we all expected him to go on
with his unfinished speech, word was sent to him by the inter-
preter to the Commission that he would not be allowed to go
on. We do not see why this should have been done at all,
but if it had been done the evening before we could have
had some one else ready to take his place. As it was, it looked
like an attempt to conf use us, and we do not think it was right.

We wish, also, to give a word of explanation about the two
roads [reserves] that Chief Albert Shakes spoke of, which he
did not make.very plain. One, as laid down by Wilson, is the

.simpshean peninsula, and the Naas and Skeena River fish-
eries; the other, as Shakes wished to express it, would be the
town site at Port Simpson, the Naas and Skeena fisheries, and
one hundred and sixty acres for each man.

The parting words of Mr. Planta were kind. We have the
véords 4 Mr. Smythe in the repor:t which Mr. Planta handed
to us, and it has been read to us, but we do not agree to these
words and the plan of the Government about our lands.

And now we wish to say that if the two Governments are--
going to answer us in the same spirit as that of Mr. Cornwall's
address, we have only one way left, after our patient waiting
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and protesting against the surveys, and the way our protests
have been treated, and that is to follow our brethren into
Alaska. But we do not believe that the Government will
treat us in that way after all they will hear through this Com-
mission. It would be very hard for us to leave the graves of

-our fathers, and the inheritance God gave to them and us, but
what else eau we do if our land matters are not settled in a just
way? .We wish to inform Mr. Cornwall as to the Hudson's Bay
Company's position here. They were first established on the
-Naas, but finding that an unsuitable place, canle here by the
direction of our Chief Legaie, whose, daughter was the wife of
one of the Hudson's Bay Company's officers. Legaie built his
house here at the time the-fort was established; but you must
understand this was ouí country long before that, for if we had
not been here what w6uld the Hudson's Bay Company have 'come
for? It is this la#d upon which Legaie and his tribe have lived
allthese years thât the Hudson's BayCompanyhave had included
in what they cal1 their claims. , We hope, sirs, that you will
find all the letters you promised to look up on this subject in
the Indian office, and will have this thing put right.

Then, in regard tt the Indian Act, we.had had it read and
axplained to us, and we do not think that we are foolish, as
Mr. Corwall said we were, if we do not take it. From what
we have-seen-from the working of it, and the agents who' carry
it out, we believe we should be no better off than the worst
heathen about us. As our chiefs pointed out to the Commission,
what we want is a municipal law, backed by legal authority,
without the bondage of being under a bad Indian agent, who
would take us backwards rather than forwards. As to Mr.
Cornwall's reference to our teachers, we would ask, if they
have not taught us and led us from our heathen darkness to
what we are now, who has ? It has surely not been the Gov-
ernment. What have they done for us? No; we have to thank
the good, Christian people who have sent missionaries among
us to teach us about God, and the improvements of our homes,
and industrious habits. And so it is by their teaching, and the
blessing of God upon our own industry, that 'Mr. Cornwalt
finds us in the comfortable appearance of which he. speaks.
As one of our leading men said, we would remind the Commis-
sion and the Government that they have a very soleni trust
committed to them, that is to treat us in truth and righteousness
as men, in regard to our country-the home of our fathers.
We believe that a kind, good Providence is with us, and is
directing all these matters. He has kept us through all these
years, while we have been oppressed and tried, and we trust He
will still keep us from doing wrong.

We shall pray that the Government and the Commissioners
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maybe directed to a wise and happy conclusion of all these
matters,-and that their decision may bring peace and gladness
to our hearts, and to the bearts of our children and children's
ebildren.

On behalf of the people of Port Simpson,

Signed,
Their Marks.

PAUL LEGAIC. )5

ALBERT SHAKES. ×
DAvm- SyrANSON. X

SAMUEL GEMx. x
RICHARD WILSoN. X

CHARLES ABBOTT. X

JOSEPH PEERS. X

tEWIS GOSNELL. X

ARTHUR W. CLAH. X

~AFFIDAVIT OF A. W. CLAH (AN INDIAN).

I was one of the first to be with the missionary when Mr.
Duncan came here about thirty years ago, when I left heathen-
ism. I have kept a journal over twenty-five years. When the
Methodist missionary, Mr. Crosby, came here, Mr. Duncan
liaving gone to Metlakahtla, I was one of the first to join the
new mission. A council was formed at that time in 1874. We
gave up heathenism. All went well for years. Our people did
well, all following as well as they knew the law of God, as told
by the missionary, and upheld by the village Cou cil. But
bad white men came, jealous.of the missionaries; they began to
do bad, to hunt and work r te Sabbath. They also got
liquor and went after our-wonen.

I thought I would settle on the Naas, on my father's land,
where they had lived for three months of the year for genera-
tions. Judge O'Reilly came, took our land, leaving us a chain
on the bank of the river, and gave the rear to the Kincolith
people. We don't know why Judge O'Reilly gave this land to
the Kincolith peóple, only they are of the Church of England.
He helps them, but opposes the Methodist Church. More, I
read in the Bible that God did4rot approve of Ahab taking the
land from Naboth: So I don't think that God is pleased with
the way the Government has taken our land. These Church
of England people at Kincolith came down the river. Our
fathers for generations owned the mouth of the Naas as our
fishing grounds, and had large houses there in late years. They
had small houses for all their fishing tackle. The Naas people
often take out all 'our things, and have burnt them. Judge



O'Reilly said we must not build houses, or leave our things, but
take them all away every year. It is just this, Judge O'Reilly
helps the Bishop's people; and Judge Elliott came and followed
in Judge O'Reilly's paths. He said we had nd right to build
houses, or to have our things there, when we had the land and
the hoises there before Judge Elliott came, hundreds of years
befor'Judges O'Reilly and Elliott were born. Now if it had
not been for the teaching we had, we should long ago have put
black paint on our faces and a knife in our hands and used our
power; but the missionary said: "Don't do that, for you are
Christians." Now we don't believe the Queen said they were
to do this way. We have always been told' that she is a good
and kind Queen; but her servants have come and done
according to their own hearts, and they tell us it is the Queen's
heart. It'was this Judge Elliott that told our people that our
Councils had no power, and we had no power, and thus
,destroyed our influence, one over another, in our own villages,
so that now we have a whiskey shop to destroy all the good
that is in our village. The taking of our land, and the bringing
of the bad among us is all very bad.'

Whei Judge O'Reilly came to meas'ure out our land, he took
our land without our 'consent, and this has brought all the
trouble. Mr. McKay was 'sent here to be our agent. He
called a meeting, and heard all the words of the Chiefs. .He
said we were right, and wrote down all our words, and said he
would take all our words to the Government. We waited long
but he did not come back, nor did he answer us. All our
words were lost, although he promised to make matters all
right. A short time after, all our people were in great excite-
ment. We held a council, for one of the Government, Mr.
Davie, had said that we did not own one inch of land. So we
sent two of our men to visit, in mid-winter, Victoria.

Our men did not wish to go. They went, and after reachis-g
Victoria, after travelling six hundred miles, at great expense,
the government would not allow our missionaries, Messrs.
Crosby and Green, to be present. We don't know why they did
this,unless it was to put down the Methodists and help the Church
of England. We heard that Bishop Ridley called for a man of
war, and he got one to help him. No matter what expense the
thing he asks comes to, he gets it. Our Methodists did not ask
a war ship, but they are put down when they try to do good at
their own expense. Our missionaries came back and told us
that they were not allowed to speak. The Government pro-
mised our people a commission in the spring, but the commis-
sion did not come till the fall. They sent a surveyor to go on
with surveying our land. The commissioners, Messrs. Planta
and Cornwall, came after they had called at Metlakahtla to get



the Bishop's paid interpreter. When they came here they did
not want to use the school-house, our usual place of meeting,
but they tried to get an old guest-house of the Hudson's Bay
Conpany,;then a private house, and next the Temperance Hall.
So we told'them wé .would not meet them unless they would
meet in the schoçl-house, so they met there. Al the people
objected to the interpreter, but the commissioners disregarded
their wishes.

Mr. Cornwall tried to put Mr. Crosby, our missionary, out of
the bouse, because he (Mr. Crosby) moved his hand, without
saying a single word to influence his people. By this we see
they help one church and not the other. Sometimes I go to
Alaska to work. . ptnet Governor Swynford. He spoke very
kind word's to me,saying my people could come to Alaska as
Mr. Duncan had come; and we bave thought of doing so, for
then our children would get all the advantage of good land,
schools, etc. We had -had none here until the Methodist Church
talked about one. Then, more, we hear the Government is to
put up one school at-Metlakahtla. Again we see it is to help
the Bishop and his few people, while all the large country of
Indians is to be shut out that belong to the Methodist Church.
Why is it the government helps one church and puts down
another ? I hope to see the day when this will be put right.

A. W. CLAZ.

Sworn to before me this third day of December, A.D. 1888,
at Port Simpson, Province of British Columbia.

S. Y. WOOTTON,
A Stipendiary Mcgistrate andi Justice of the

Peace, in and for the Province
of Briti8h Columbia.

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN RYAN (AN INDIAN).

It is many years ago, our fathers had this country from

the great God, and we had no trouble about our land -till late
years when th Government men came amongst us, so I hope
you will see for -yourself what is troubling the people. One
thing I wish to. tell you of, a trouble which happened on the
Naas: Every year our fishing tools are taken by tbe Naas
people, as they have small gardens near all the fishing. places.
All of our things were gone one year, so one of our company
locked up their potatoes till the difficulty would be settled, and
Judge Elliott sent a summons .to Samuel Musgrave, had him
brought down to Port Simpson, and tried him. We were all
witnesses. Several ministers were present at -the trial. The
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judge fined^Musgrave, and let those who stole our tools, etc., go
free. The Kincolith people belong to the English Church, and
we belong to the Methodist Church; this was clear to any one
the reason of his action. We have several good interpreters
among our people, but when the Government party want one
for any purpose they go to Metlakahtla for one, or to some
other ; point connected with the Bishop's party. Is it because
ours are Methodists ? Those of the Church of England are
always bringing trouble to us, and the Government are sending
war-ships ani soldiers, at great expense, to the Church of Eng-
land, but there never has been one sent to Port Simpson, for
we are a law-abiding people.

The winter before last, this village sent John Ryan and
Richard Wilson to Victoria to lay their case before the Govern-
ment, and Mr. Crosby was urged to go with them to act as
interpreter. When we reached Victoria, the Government would
not let Messrs. Crosby and Green act, because they were Meth-
odists. - When they met us we asked for Mr. Crosby to inter-
pret for us, as we could not get one. The late Mr. Smythe
wished Mr. Crosby to.interpret, but the others would not have
him. This showed us they did not wish to have- the truth.
We think it was because Messrs. Green and Crosby were Meth-
odists. So we see they, the Government, favor one Church
more than another. It was our land troubles we want set right,
for we have been in great trouble about it. I heard Mr. Smythe
say," You will get what you need."

Now the Government are building a large school at Metla-
kahtla, where are only a few people. Why did they not build
the school where there are many people? At Port Simpson
there are nearly eight hundred people, perhaps more; at Metla-
kahtla about eighty people. They send a commission here,
which ^returns to Victoria and tries to shame us; but we are
still on the uand God gave to our fathers. We wish to have
the truth and to be treated like men, and not be deceived and
treated like brutes. Still we shall have a large school. We
hope- the Góvernment will do right, and let us live on the
ground of our fathers. God has blessed us aga i with light.
The Skeena people would long ago have put the Government
to great trouble but for our chiefs, who told them to stop. We
are glad to hear you are going to put these things right for us.
We pray that God will bless you.

His
Tnos. CRosBY, JOHN x RRN.

Interpreter. Mark.

Sworn to before me this third day of December, A.D., 1888,
at Port Simpson, Province of British Columbia, through the



interpretation of Thomas Crosby, who was sworn by me to

administer the oath to the deponent, John Ryan, and who first

made oath that he had read over and explained to the said

deponent, in the Tsimshean language, the contents of this affi-

davit, and that the deponent seemed to thoroughly understand

the saine, the said deponent making bis mark hereto in my

presence.

S. Y. WooTroN,
A Stipendiary Magi8trate and Jutice of the

Peace in and for the Province

of Britol Colunbia.

Copy.]
AFFIDAVIT OF CHIEF PAUL LEGAIC.

We are living on the land that God gave to our fathers. I

have never heard that any grandfather had any trouble about

the land with any people or tribe. Each nation had its own

hunting grounds, its own grounds for fish and for berries, etc.

My people told me that when the first white men came here

they brought liquor and tobacco and-gave these as presents, to

get a piece of ground to trade upon. They paid-us for the land

because it was ours. Some years ago the missionary came to

teach us God's law. We learned a little about God, and we put

off our old ways. Mr. Duncan was the first missionaryý fHe

moved to Metlakahtlah. After many years the Methodist mis-

sionary came to Port Simpson.
I was at Metlakahtlah when Judge O'Reilly came. We tpld

him our country included the Naas and the Skeena fisheries,

that Port Simpson and Metlakahtla were our winter quartežs.

We asked him not to survey our land. When he visited us

again we asked him to let us keep the Tsimpshean peninsulý

and our fishery rights on the Naas and Skeena. He would not\

consent~to this. Since then we have been told that it is not our

land. I was at Metlakahtila when a war ship came, and law-

yer Davie 'said to us then that we had not one inch of land.

We asked him if ever the Queen took land without a treaty.

Anothq year a war ship came to blow up our village, Metla-

kaht . We said all right; we will stand by our land, or die

by our land. Three different times war ships came to fight us;

but we knew it was our land. Mr. McKay came to Metla-

kahtla, and we sent him away, as we did not want an Indian

agent, for at all the places where the agents were the people were

worse off than we. What made the most trouble was that the

Government measured off two acres of land at Metlakahtla,
called Mission Point, and let the Bishop of Caledonia have it.

We saw the Government was on one side more than the other.

47
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They helped the Bishop, though there were only a very few
people with him, the rest ,being with Mr. Duncan. I had lived
at Metlakahtla for years, but my people came and brought me
back to Port Simpson where I now live. I have seen my
people in great trouble about -the land; for they aid . the
Government has taken the land of our fathers. We understand
the white man has land that God gave him; so has the colored
man; but they say we have not an inch of land. The Goeern-
ment sent their servant,''Judge Elliott. He .did many things
against us: . He broke down our councils and the government
of our villages. We had rules, but he, Judge Elliott, said they
are no good.

We have tried to keep the fear of God before us all this
time. We have had trouble about our land, but still the bad
seems to.be gaining on us. A liquor license 'was given to a
trader-hgre. -Bad white men come and drink the liquor, and
tbey give it to our people. We sent Mr. Croéby, our mission-
ary, with tw'o of our men, to Victoria, in the midst of winter,
at great expense. ' When they reached Victoria they would not
let our missionary in because he was a Methodist. Mr. Crosby
could interpret for us. Afterwards the Commissioners, Messrs.
Cornwall and.Planta, came. They first called at' Métlakahtla
and got the Bishop's -pai4 interpreter. When the Commis-
sioners came here we objected to their interpreter, as we had a
a mnuch better one. Mr. Cornwall persisted in the use.of the
interpreter-he brought with him. Though we had the schdol-
bouse readÿ for the Commissioners, they sent their servan*
around to.see if they could not use an old guest-house for their
meeting. -Afterwards tried to get a private bouse, then the
temperance hall, but we would not meet in any of these places
other than the public school-house. They met us there. It
makes our hearts sore to see things which make us think that
the Governmnent are helping the Bishop's party, and are all the
time against our missionary. We have just heard that the
Government is to bave a big boarding-school at Metlakahtla for
boys. Why is it built there when there are only about eighty
people?' Here we have seven or eight hundred peopie, perhaps
more. All these and many other things show us that the
Government party is in favor of one Church more than the
other. ' We don't ask help from the Government, but we ask
for our rights on the land.

His

TnoMAs CROSBY, PAUL x LEGIC.
Interpreter. - Mark.

Sworn to before me this third day of December, A.D., 1888,
at Port Simpon, Province of British Columbia, through the
interpretation of Thomas Crosby, who was sworn by me to

k



administer the oath to the deponent, Paul Legale, and who first
made oath that he had read over and explained to the deponent
in the Tsimishean language the contents of this affidavit, and
that the deponent seemed to thoroughly understand the same,
the said deponent making his mark ereto in my presence.

. Y. WOOTTON,
A Stipendiary Magistrate and JuRtice of the

Peace in and for the Province
of British Columbia.

AFFIDAVIT OF LOUIS GOSNELL (AN INDIAN).

When I was a little boy my fathers all went on 'their own
way in this country. There was no trouble about the land.
Mr. Duncan came here about thirty -years ago to teach us.
Since, he went off to Metlakahtla and left a lot of bad people
behind. About fifteen years ago we asked for a Methodist
missionary. One came and taught us about God, and all our
people gave up their old way to walk in the new way. Then
we commenced to build a new town, and to do like the white
man. Then people began to talk about the land on which our
fathers have lived since God put them on it. Dr. Powell came
to see us in 1877. He said we need not trouble, because it was
our land, and that the Queen would see that we had our rights.
This iswhat our missionary had told us for years. We thought
those words were true. Not long after a land surveyor came
here, and we wished to know what he had come for., After,
wards we found out he had come secretly to mark out land for
some white chiefs, some say Government chiefs. Afterwards
we saw it in the newspaper. It was called the land.grab. ye
do not wish to keep all the country, nor do we wish to keep
out the white people. We only ask that we keep the penin-
sula, and our fishery rights on the Skeena and on the Naas.
Neither do we wish white men to move off their places on the
peninsula; but we want to know that the land will be ours
forever. The land is poor-no soil; only rocks and moss.

When Mr. Tuck came up to survey the land he said we had
a right to protest, and that he would send on our letter to the
proper place. He went on to survey the land. We also sent
letters to Mr. Jemmett, the other surveyor, who promised to
send'them on to the.Government. Still the surveyors went on,
and we thought our letters were destroyed because we belonged
to the Methodist Church. The Commissioners, Messrs. Corn-
wall and Planta, did not come straigzht here. as they were to do.
They called at Metlakahtla for an interreter, and brought her -
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up'the coast, and to all the places to which they went. They
would not change ber when our people protested against it.
Our people wished to have their own interpreter, but because
Mrs. Morison was of the Church of England, she was kept in
employ. * Thug we see th.ey prefer one Church to another.

Thisis the big place of all thé Tsimpsheaus.. Here are eight
tribes with their chiefs. We don't know why they wish to
build a boarding-school at Metlakahtla, for there there are only
about eigbty people, and here there are about eight hundred
people. Nearly four thousand people belong to the Methodists,
and only three hundred- people, or a few m=e belong to the
Churçh of England.

We got into great-trouble about our land. -We chose two of
our men to go to Victoria, and we urged Mr. Crosby to go with
them. The Naas people sent Mr. Green with some of their
men. When they reached.Victoria, the chiefs there would not
allow Mr. Green and Mr. Crosby to come before them with our
people, so they did-not tell the great chiefs all our words. We
think it was because we belong to the Methodist Cburch. We
have been hoping for an answerto all our words. When Judge
O'Reilly came, we told him our wishes, but he has not anqwered
us. He also went to Metlakahtla to get Mrs. Morison for an
interpreter, just as others had done before. Our people do not
know what to think of it. We think it is because our people
are Méthodists they do this to them. We do hope God will
bless us, for He bas promised to help the weak, and we shall
trust Him to do it.

T. CRosBY, His
Interpreter. LEWIS x GOSNELL.

Mark..

Sworn to before me this third day of Deeember, A.D. 1888,
at Port Simpson, Province of British Columbia, through the
interpretation of Thomnas Crosby, who was sworn by me to
administer the oath to the- deponent, Lewis Gosnell, and who
first made oath that he had read over and explained to the
deponent in the Tsimpshean language the contents of this affi-
davit, and that the depoftent seemed to thoroughly understand
the same, the said deponent making his mark hereto in my
presence. S. Y. WOOTroN;

A8ßtipendiary Magistrate and Jstice of the Peace
in and for the Province of British Columbia.
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AFFIDAVIT OF CHIEF ALFRED DOUDOWARD.

As long asI have lived I have seen my people happy in their
own way on the land which God gave to our fathers. When
the fHudson's Bay Company came here to trade, nothing was
said about land. Other traders also came here to trade. Our -
people did not always stay on this place. They had four
places: one salmon fishery on,.the Skeena for the summer; the
winters they spent here and at Metlakahtla; in the early spring
they went to Naas River for the small fish. These were the
places where our fathers got their food by fishing and hunting.

The Kincolith people did not always live at the mouth of the
Naas River, but they have just been down a few years, as a
new mission was formed.

The Methodist mission was commenced here, and they taught
us about God, and some have learned to read and write and
work at different trades, and we are all trying to be like the
white people. Some time after the commencement of this
mission, Dr. Powell came here in 1877. All ;the people were
glad to see him because the great chief had come. He said he
had cone to help us. He was sent by the Queen. If we had
any troubles, he said, we were to take them 'to him and hd
would put them all right. If you want a council, he said, I
siall be glad to give you help toward this to govern yourselves.
I said to him, "Look on those hills where the bones of our dead
are laid." . In reply, he (Dr. Powell) said, " That is right. Tell
me all your hearts, and I will send a strong letter to your good
mother, the Queen. Don't trouble yourselves about the land.
It is yours, and no one is going to take it from you, for it is
yours." I have heard Dr. Powell say this after the feast he
gave. When w*e were walking toward the Fort, he asked where
the Hudson Bay Company's claim began. We told him where
th·ey first spoke of their line. He (Dr. Powell) said they (the
Hudson's Bay Company) do not claim outside of their fence.
Dr. Powell left. All the people were pleased with his promise
to look after all our interests.

Not many years after, a surveyor came up when all the
people were away at Naas, and secretly surveyed the land ail
over the bay and round the harbor. The land was taken up
by private men, etc.,- and we heard that the Government men
were in the land stea. The whole thing was done while our
people were away from home. When our people returned, we
sent a letter to Dr. Powell, for he had told us that when we
were in trouble to write him. We did not believe that he
would help the land speculator, or that he would allow them to
take our-land.
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Judge O'Reilly came to settle our land trouble. He did not
send us word about.his coming, so that most of our people were
away when he came. I met him in the mission-bouse, was
introduced to him by our missionary, Mr. Crosby. I said to
him, " What have you come for?" He replied, "The Govern-
ment has sent me to measure the land." I asked how much
land he was going to measure. He said, "I want to see about
it first;" then he asked me how much I thought it ought to be.
I said, "All the waybetween the Naas and the Skeena rivers."
He said, Po! po il rock and mountain; what can you
do with it1?" I' id to him, "What would you think 1f we
went to England and said we are going to take your- land ?
What would you do ? Would you be pleased ?" He said, no,
we would not like it. The Queen would not let it be done. So
I said, '<That is the way we feel." We met, and wrote a letter
and protested against his movements; for we saw that he was

going to take our land from us. We expected the Government
would help and protect us from bad white men. But it was
the Government that was going to take the land. A chief went
up to Naas to urge Mr. O'Reilly not to take our land there.
He gave one chain in front, commonage, but all the good land
at the back to the Kincolith people, because they are Chureh of
England in religion and we are Methodists. We have no place
to get wood on the Naas River as we used to, owing to Judge
O'Reilly giving the woodland to the Kincolith people. He
promised to call here and have a meeting, but he did not do so.
He went off another way. Afterwards Capt. Jemmett went to
the Naas. He did not tell us he was going, We sent a letter
to stop him. He told us that our letters of protest should be
sent to the Government, but the Government has not answered
them.

Capt. Jemmett afterwards came to Port Simpson. Again wp
protested. He promised to send on our letters. We were in
great trouble, and some of our people were ready to fight; but
our missionary told·us to be quiet and pray to God, and that
He would help us. So we did not break any law about -our
land. No words in reply to our protests have yet come to us
from the Government. Capt. Jemmett said our way was right,
but said, do'not stop us . You have a right, he said, to protest,
and this is the way Christians do. He was allowed to go on.

We had a visit from that great chief, Lord Dufferin. At that
time there was trouble with the Government about the land.
He made a speech. He said the Queen's Government has never
yet taken any country without a treaty. If no treaty has yet
been made, it is still the Indian's country. When we heard
this, all our hearts were glad, the words of this wise chief, as
we always felt safe in our possessions.



Some time after, Mr. McKay, an Indian agent, was sent, When
he.came he called a meeiing of all the people in the school-house.
He said, Chiefs, I have come to help you, and to watch over you.
We told him what Mr. O'Reilly had done, of the land grab, etc.,
round the bay. We also told him, as we had told Mr. O'Reiliy,
that.we must keep our country from the Naas to the Skeena.
He said, I shall take your words to the Government, and try
and.settle it all. Also we told him we wanted to have a good
large boarding school for our boys, and he promised to do all
he could to get it. I will do all I can to help you, he said. He
went away and never came back; so nothing came of his visit.
He, Mr. McKay, took down our words, yet we never got one
word from him. Not hearing from him, we sent him a letter
to know if he was dead or alive. He sent us one letter, but
seemed in an angry mood. This was the man who was going
to settle all our troubles. We have sent letters to the Govern-
ment, also we sent one of our Chiefs to Ottawa to see about
our interests, with Mr.-Duncan and two of his men, to meet Sir.
John A. Macdonald. Sir John has not yet answered us. Not
long ago, right in the midst of winter, we sent two of our men
to Victoria, with our missionary, as he could speak our lan-
guage. Though be did not wish to'go, we urged him so much
to go that he went. When he had reached Victoria, the mén in
power would not let Mr. Crosby interpret for our Indians. Mr.
Green, the missionary at Naas, went down with two of his men.
He was not allowed to interpret for them. An Indian from
the Naas was chosen interpreter. He told the men in power
that he could not interpret. Still they went on with him as if
they did not wish to hear the truth.

Richard Wilson, one of our men, said, we don't wish to be
slaves on our land. Mr. Smythe said, you are free men, and
what you Wish the Government will give, and they are willing
to -do what you say. The Government promised to send up a
Commissioner-we hoped our land troubles would then be
settled. Messrs. Cornwall and Planta were sent up to the
Naas. They called here on the way down, having with them an
interpreter from the Bishop's following at Metlakahtla'; got a
meeting of the people, but the people did not like the way the
Commissioners went to wo&. The people of Port Simpson had
chosen me and others to speak. There are eight tribes with
their chiefs here. I am the chief of the Kit-an-dok tribe. We
wished to have our own interpreter, but the Commissioners
would not allow us to have her interpret for us, but kept their
dwn. I gave a part of my speech to the Commissioners. Spoke
up to.6 p.m. When we again met I was told that I was not to
speak any more before them. I asked them why? They said
you are a white man; so they did not get the words of the
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head of our tribe. When the Commissioners went away they
told us they would send an answer to our words; but no
answer bas come to us up to the present. They sent an Indian
agent against our wishes. Mr. O'Reilly bas since come, and
told us he wanted to eut the reserve into two-between us and
the people of Metlakahtla. We told him we wanted no division
of the reserve. He bas, against our wishes, made the division
of the reserve: giving to 80 people about' as much land as he
bas given to 800 people. There are people living here who
caine from Metlakahtla when the crowd went over to Alaska.
They have houses at that village, but the Indian agent says
they cannot be allowed to take their houses down to rebuild
them at Port Simpson. The Metlakahtla people are of the
Church of England, followers of Bishop Ridley; the peop'le here

z are Methodists, therefore they are not allowed to have their
bouses removed from Metlakahtla. An old man on the Naas,
a Methodist, eremoved from bis village to- Kineolith under
.Bishop Ridley, taking bis bouse with him. The Indian agent
doesnot interfere in this case to prevent a bouse being taken
down. The Government help the Church of England in all the
work. The offlcials are all with the Bishop's party. All are on
one side in all the work.

We had a good council here to keep the village in order, but
Judge Elliott came and said it was no council and no-good, and
broke it up. Mr. Harrison, of the Church of England, living
at Massett, on Queen Charlotte's Island, held a trial, tined a man;
and he (Mr. H.) said, "Dr. Powell told me·to do so." He had
power from Dr. Powell, the Superintendent of Indian Affairs
in British Columbia. So you see one Church is treated differ-
ently from the other.

ALFRED DOUDOWARD

Sworn to before me this the 3rd day of December, 1888, at
Port Simpson, British Columbia.

S. Y. Woorro'N,
Stipendiary Magiqtrate and Justice of the

Peace in and for the Province
of British Columbia.

AFFIAVIT OF CHARLES ABBOTT (AN INDIAN).

I heard Dr. Powell say, in Chief Albert Nelson's house,
The land is yours, and you ought to have it right up to the
Hudson Bay Company's fence. I was in the Fort when the
people told Judge O'Reilly to stop bis work, as he would not
allow them as much land as they wished. When Mr. O'Reilly



came most of our people were away, because he had not let
them know of his coming; but he did not wish to do what our
people wanted. He went on to the Naas. One of our Chiefs
followed him, and told him what were our claires on the Naas
(see Blue Book); but still he would not do what he said-went
on and gave our land on the Naas to a few Kincolith people
at the mouth of that river. We see Judge O'Reilly vent up to
help the Church of England people, and he did not wish us
to live on our own ground, which was the camping-place of
our fathers. - We had houses on our land on the Naas many
long years before Judge O'Reilly came up. Still he said that
he did not wish us to build hòuses for fishing, and only gave us
one chain on the bank of the river Naas. The rest of the
ground that we and our fathers cleared he gave to the
Kincolith Church of England people. We see that Mr. O'Reilly
does not wish to help the Indians, or to see them become wise.

Dr. Powell came again, and said that he was going to send an
agent; but the people' did not wish to have an agent. Dr.
Powell had promised us many good things, but he did not
fulfil his promises. He sent Mr. McKay, and he called a
meeting and heard all that we had to say. Mr. McKay said we
were all right, and he p.ut down our words. He said also
that he would lay all our words before the Government, but
we never saw him again. Soon Mr. Jemmett, a surveyor, came,
and the people sent him a letter of protest against his survey.
He came here in the latter part of summer. Again we
protested, and he said he' would send our letter to the Govern-
ment and it would be attended to; but we have never heard
a word from him. Mr. Tuck, anotkpîsurveyor, came here the,
following spring, though we had askedi for a Commission, and
the Government had promised one. Mr. Tuck came before the
Commission. We told him not to go on with the survey
of the land against our wishes. We sent him a letter, which
he promised to send to Vicforia."He went on surveying the
land,' but we have not heard a single word from that day
to this.

A. year before last a Commission came, consisting of Messrs.
Cornwall and Planta. They called at Metlakahtla and took
Mrs. Morison as interpreter. They had no reason to do that,
for we had a better interpreter up here. So in al] this we see
the Government are opposed to the riissionaries of *the Meth-
odist Church, and help the others. When they came here they
tried every way enot to use ou'r sehool-house; tried to get the
old guest-house of the Hudson's Bay Company, then a small
pri'vate house, then the temperance hall; but the people told
them that if they did not hold the meeting in -the school-house,
they would not meet them at all.
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No one told us to have strong hearts about our land; but
the men of the Government have .told so many stories and
made so many promises, we are strong. By all this false
dealing we got our eyes opened, and have found out their
bad tricks. We see they do not wish to do right.

s The Commissioners met and heard the words of our people,
and wrote them down, and promised that the Government
should send us an answer, which they have not done, but sent
an Indian agent-forced him upon us. We do not want
an agent, for we have never consented to any of their work.
Judge O'Reilly was sent again. This is what we object to.
We see that the Government are opposed to us. We have
never given up our land or taken any from the Governiment.
We don't wish to hear them say, it is the rmissionary tha
has put. all this into our heads. Yes, the-missionaries ve
taught us so that we know something of what iiright.

T. CROSBY, CHARLES X ABBOTT.
Interpreter.-k.

Sworn to before me this third day of December, A.D. 1888,
at Port Simpson; Province of British Colu bia, through the
interpretation of Thomas Crosby, who wXs sworn by me to
administer the oath to the deponent, Chàrles Abbott, and who
llrst made oath that he had read over and explained to the
deponent in the Tsimpshean language the, contents of this
affidavit, and that t e deponent séemed to thoroughly under-
stand the same, the 'aid deponent making his mark hereto
in my presence.

S. Y. WOOTON,

Stipendiary Magistrate and Justice of the
Peace in and for the Province

of British Columbia.

Copy.]

STATEMENT OF CHIEF HERBERT WALLACE.

Some time ago the Government said they would not deal
with us. Judge O'Reilly came up and lai.d out a piece of land
for us and called it a reserve, and said no one could take it
from us. Afterwards came a surveyor andeut off Mission Point
at Metlakahtla, and gave it to-the Bishop of·Caledonia.

A few months ago Judge 0'Reilly came again and divided
our land against our will into two parts, giving the Metlakahtla
people (about 100 in all) as much land as he gave us, about 800
people. We don't want this. We want the whole of the Tsimp-
shean peninsula. We were heathen people once; then we did
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not kpow anything' about our land, but now we are being
civilized, we know this to be our land from our knowledge of
God.

. Three years ago our people sent me to Ottawa with Mr. Dun-
can, etc., where we met Sir John Macdonald. He said to us,
"What do you want?" We answered, "We are greatly troubled
about our land." Sir John replied, -"The land belongs to you.
Nobody is going to take it froin you." After an interview of
half an hour, Sir John sent us to Mr. Vankoughnet, telling us
that he had charge of the Tsimpshean people. To Mr. Van-
koughnet we said, " We want to be free on our own land."
We also told him we wanted the whole of the Tsimpshean penin-
sula, and that we would 'àllow the. white people now on the
land to remain; but that we do not want more to come. He
promised us all that we wanted, telling us he would take our
words to Parliament when it opened, and afterwards he would
send us word to let us know what had been done for us. We
returned home told our people what was said to us, and ever
since no answer has been sent to our words. Instead of send-
ing us an answer, he, or some one else, sent up a surveyor to
mark only a small piece of land for us. This we thought was
his answer. We tried to stop the surveyors by letter. Mr.
Vankoughnet came to Victoria. In company with several gentle-
men, ministers and laymen of the Methodist Church, I met him
at the Driard House. He promised to -hold an interview with
us that day at 2 o'clock p.m., in Dr. Powell's office. When we
came to his- office, Dr. Powell would not allow the Revs. Mr.
Starr and Mr. Tate, N. Shakespeare, Esq. (then M. P.), Sheriff
McMillan, etc., to be present at our interview, so we Tsimpsheans
ivere heard alone. Mr. Vankoughnet said to us, " What do you
want ? What have you come for?" I answered, "Why did
not Sir John fulfil his promise to answer our words?" Mr.
Vankoughnet said, " We did promise you to send word to either
Mr. Duncan or to Dr. Powell.". I asked, " What had, Mr. Dun-
can or Dr. Powell to do with us? You promised to send the
Tsimpsheans an answer." Again I said, " Why did not Sir John
answer us?" Mr. Vankoughnet said, Judge O'Reilly had sent
a letter to Sir John, telling him the Tsimpsheans were satisfied
with their land. Judge O'Reilly was present; 'I turned to him,
asking him what Tsimpsheans were satisfied with his survey. I
told him that I was a Tsimpshean and that J was not satisfied.
.Mr. O'Reilly said, " The people take me where they want me to
go and I give them a piece of land there." I said to him, " You
remember Moses McDonald, a chief of the Tsimpsheans, that he
was opposed to your surveys. Show me a paper with the
name of a Tsimpshean chief to it, who says he is satisfied with
your surveys? That shows you, Mr. O'Reilly, you did not do



right, because you cannot show me such a paper." Mr.
O'Reilly said, "They are satisfied." I said, " How can they be
satisfied when you gave apart of their lands on which their
houses stand to the Hudson's Bay Company?" Mr. Vankough-
net said, "lWhat do' you want such a big lot of land for ?" I
said, "We are only wanting what is our own." Mr. Van-
koughnet said the reserve would not be divided. All who spoke
the same language would be one. Mr. Vankoughnet said, "Mr.
Duncan must have put you up to say this;" but I said No,
Mr. Duncan is away in the United States, and our brothers are
over there, because you did not do what you promised."

HERBERT.WALLACE. X
Mark.

PORT SMPS'N, JAN., 1889.

Herbert Wallace has sworn before me that the foregoing
document is an expression of his own views.

R. H. HALL, J. P.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD WILSON (AN INDIAN).

r I am glad to have this opportunity to say'something. about
our land. I think I am not mistaken in calling this land our
own; because I know this land was given to us by the hand of
God, from the beginning of the world until now. I dorn't know
why we should ,be troubled about our own land. We should
have no more trouble about our land than I have about my
coat. My coat is my own. No one should take it from me.
So our land is our own, and the Government should not inter-
fere with it. We cannot allow any one to take our land from
us. The Government ought not to take it frora us without a
treaty, or getting it from us in some upright way.

The Governmeiit has not treated us aright yet. Years ago
we sent Herbert Wallace to Ottáwa. Sir John promised him
to send us an answer to our words, but he has not yet done so.
In this way Sir John has not done right. Ife broké his own
promise. By the English law he has not done right. The
English law is straight, not crooked. So Sir John ought to
have answered us, for he was at the head of Indian Affairs. I
think if Sir John had fulfilled his promise, we should not be in
trouble to-days about our land. The reason why we write
again is that we may have justice. We should not be in
trouble so many years while justice could be 'had. It is a
sharne for us to go somewhere else for justice, whilst there is
the law of England to settle the trouble for us. We don't
want to have this land called a reserve, because the land is now



our own, and it is not right for us to borrow what is our own.
The pepole sent me to Victoria in company with the Revs. Mr.
Crosby and Mr. Green, etc. There I met Mr. Smythe, the
Prime Minister of the Province. .He said the Queen gave us
our reserve, but that white men had to buy their land. He
also said no one could take away our land from us. I do not
believe this, for the Flat Heads, of Victoria, had their land
taken, from them after Mr. Smythe had said this to me. We
know the reserves are not strong; for a surveyor came to divide
the reserve of the Tsimpsheans into two parts, giving as much
to the one hundred people at Metlakatlah as to the eight
hundred people at Port Simpson. This was done against our
will. This shows us that this reserve is not strong to us. It
is not strong enough for a man to live on it. Because the offi.
cers of the Government gave as much land to the people of
Metiakatlah as they gave to the people of Port Simpson. It
shows us that they are one-sided. We think the reason is because
we, the many, are Methodists, and the few at Metlakatlah are
Church of England.

Tell me, sir, if you think this is right ? I think myself it is
not right. The Goyernment now is building a boarding-school
at Metlakatlah where there are only about.one hundred people,
and they have paid no attention to us whatever. The law
officers all live at MeUfakatlah. There are two judges there
and one constable, all employed by the Government to loqk
after one hundred people, while at Port Simpson there is only
one magistrate- for about eight hundred people, and he is ,not
hired by the Government. What -do you think of this, sir ?
We show- you these things that you may know we are not
properly treated. We want to be dealt with aright here only.
We will follow what is right about our land. You know better
than we do these two things are not right. The way the
Government do things hurts our feelings.

Our forefathers, from all time, went to the Naas in spring to
fish for oolachan. When the fishing is going on, they used
poles for drying their fish on, and for nets; firewood for cook-
ing and boiling their fish also they cut down timber for boxes
to put thet oolachan grease in. 'The poles, firewood and timber
they cut on the lands òn the Naas River. Nobody doubted
their richt to cut down timber for these purposes, because it
was weý known the land and the right to cut down timber
were their own. Now, since the land has been divided on the
.Naas River into reserves, we see from' the Indian Act [the
B:itish ,Columbia Timber Law is probably meant] that it is
impossible for us to cut down timber for our own use without
being considered trespassers, and subject to a fine. That is our
rights inherited from our -fathers have been given to others,
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namely, to the Kincolith people, who now live at the mouth of
the Naas, and are people who have come out from tribes now
living at the villages on the Upper Naas. Kincolith was only
founded between fifteen and twenty years ago. We look upon
the above as a great injustice to our people. It will be almost
impossible for us to take with us to the Naas every spring
poles, firewood, and timber along with our other things, suffi-
cienitý to carry on our work. Te Government has given us
only o chain of land above high water mark for our use
.and they egll it Commonage. On the Commonàge there is
nothing but gass. If the Government carry out the Indian
Act in regard to timber on the reserves, we, the Tsimpsheans,
shall not be able to go the Naas to fish, and so we shall lose a
part of our food. So we ask you to judge this matter now, and
have it putright before trouble is made between us and the
Naas people.

The Cormonage on the Naas should be increased, say to two

chains, and our rights inherited from our forefathers to cut
down such timber as we need for fishing purposes in spring
should be secured to us. On the Commonage, when our camps
are built, the land is ours, and no one has any right to make
garden of it, as is done now, for it brings trouble to us. We

shall be very happy.if you secure to us these rights. We ask
the Government to secure to us the whole of the Tsimpshean
peninsulhfor our own and our children's uge ater us. 'On the
Skeena River we ask that our fishing station s'be secured to us;
and also we ask that those pieces of lana around the Skeena
fishing stations, suitable for gardens, be secured to us and our
¶children.

R. H. HALL, J.P., RICHARD WILSON.
Witness to gignature.

PORT SIMPSON, JAN,, 1889.

LETTER OF PORT SIMPSON CHIEFS, AND OTHERS,
re SURVEYS ON THE4 NAAS RIVER.

PORT SIMPSON, May 20th, 1880.

To Capt. W. J. JE METT, and other Surveyors of Indian Lands
on the Naas.

SInts,-
We have heard that you have come to survey land on

Naas River. We think that we should have been told by the
Government, as the Government well know we are all interested
in thé Reserves on the Naas.
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For generations we have lived on the Naas part of the year.
Our fathers, had large houses there, and spent some months
there to gather small fish and fix their food, and we still hold
our claim to those fishing grounds, as you will see by our
houses,.etc., being still there, and we do not wish to have them
taken from us. This is one reason why we sent a delegation to
Ottawa, to have this and other matters settled about our land,
and as it is not yet settled we do not wish you to survey the
land now.

Judge O'Reilly started all the trouble on the Naas between
us and the Kincolith people by saying he had given us only a
chain for our fishing ground.

These people have just a few years ago moved down to Kin-
colith, the mouth of the river, and we do -not see why they
should wish now to plant our fishing grounds that ve have held
so long.

We have no objection to them planting all the ground they
wish up the river,, at their old homes, but we do not wish
them to plant on our fishing grounds.

If they do, we shall always have trouble. One of our chiefs
was sent up with Judge O'Reilly and pointed this out to him,
but he would not listen, so now we. do not wish to have our

,land si;rveyed till we have heard from the Government at
Ottawa.

Al we wish in all this land question is our rights; so youhave
heard our worcts, and know that we do not wish the land sur-
veyed till it is properly settled.

Signed on behalf of Indian Council of Port Simpson.
Their marks.

ALFRED DOUDOwARD. X
GEORGE KELLY. x

PAUL SCOUGATE. X
DAVID SWA-ŽsON. x

T. CROSBY,
Witness.

Copy.]

LETTER OF PORT SIMPSON CHIEFS TO W. J.

JEMMETT, EsQ., re SURVEY.

PORT SDiPsoN, fofenber 6th, 1886.

W. J. JEMMETT, EsQ.

SIR,
We have received your letter, and wish to ask you to be

good enongh to wait until our chiefs and people come home,
then we shall be pleased to have a meeting and hear your
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explanations about the survey of our land. All we wish about
our land is justice and peace as long as we live.

We are,«Sir,
Yours respectfully,

Their marks.

PAUL SCOWGATE. X
JAMES HAYWOOD. X

OWEE. X
LICE. X

T. CROsBY,
Witness.

• PROTEST OF PORT SIMPSON CHIEFS AGAINST
SURVEY.

PORT SIMPSON, November 6th, 1886.
W. J. JEMMETT, EsQ.

SIR,-
At the meeting held this evening you heard the words

of our chiefs, that they do not wish you to go on with the sur-
vey of any reserve for them and their people, as they have not
been satisfactorily treated with in the matter; and we hereby
protest against the survey of our land, or any part of the inher-
itance of our fathers.

Signed by request and on behalf of the Indian chiefs and
people of Port Simpson.

Their marks.
PAUL IEGAIC. x
DAvIm SWANSON. x
A. DOUDOWARD. x
MATTHEW SHEPHERD. X
C. PRICE. .- x
MATTHEW JOHNSON. X

T. CRosBY,
Witness.

C'opy]
STATEMENT OF DAVID McKAY (AN INDIAN).

NAAs RIVER, B.C.; Nov, 27th.

'I expected the officers of the Government would be true, but
it is not so. I saw a map in the Church mission-house at

Kincolith, and the Indians told me that Dr. Powell sent it to

them, and that Mr. O'Reilly had given them (the Indians of

Kincolith) the land at Fishery Bay (Reserve No. 10), which Mr.
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O*Reilly himself promised us in 1881,;when he came to Fishery
Bay and saw us living on the lands.- This map troubled me
much, because I saw on it marked.<'Kincolith Reserve," the land
at Fishery Bay that was given us. In the spring of 1885, on
June 24th, I went to the Indian Office, Victoria, with Arthur
Calder and William Jeffries, and saw Mr. Moffat and Mr. Green
from Mr. O'Reilly's office, and one other white man. Mr.
Moffat asked us what we wanted. I'said, "I want to ask you
about our land, if you have any maps in the office here to show
our lands." He answered, " Where is your home? " " Green-
ville," I replied. " Oh, Lach-al-tsap you- came t om, do you ?"
he said. "Yes," I answered. "No," he said, "there are no
papers about your land; we have not made the maps yet for
the Indians." I said, " I want to ask you if you had a map ?"
"iNo," he replied; " te map will show your land, but we have
not made them yet." I said, "'I tell you why I came, because
I saw a nap at Kincolith Church mission, and they said it was
sent from this office; that, is why I came to ask, for I saw
Fishery Bay, our land, marked on this map, that they said Dr.
Powell seuf them; because Mr. O'Reilly said when he was with
us in 1881, that he gave us the land down to Black Point,
including Fishery Bay, and then I saw that land on Kincolith
map, so I came here to ask about it." Mr. Moffat answered,
" No, no; we did not give a map to Kincolith." " Is that so ? "
I asked; " Did it not go from here ? Why, Frederick Allen,
of Kincolith, told me that he came to Victoria when his brother
conmitted suicide in Victoria gaol, and that he went to Dr.
Powell and he gave him the map to take back to Kincolith,
which he did." Mr. Moffat answered, "I do rfot know that màn.
We did not give a map to Kincolith, or any Indian from Kin-
colith; they have never receiyed a map from here. We would
not give a map to just one village." I asked, " Where did the
map come from then ?" "I don't know," he said; "some white
man, perhaps, made it for them; we did not; Dr. Powell did
not. I will cail Mr. Green from Mr. Kelly's office.". I answered,
" There is trouble all about the Kincolith map between our
village and Kincolith people, because they have our land on
their map." Mr. Green now spoke and explained to.us that a
map had not been sent. He repeated this many times A
little after this, Mr. Green, our missionary, received a letter
from Ottawa, in answer to one he had written to the Depart-
ment, in which it said, "Dr. Powell wrote he did send the map
to Kincolith." I was surprised at how they had deceived
Arthur Calder, William Jeffries and myself. We want the
Government to do right-and make a treaty with us, and give us
enouglh land for ourselves, and then give us a present for that
the Queen will take, so that our hearts will not be troublied
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again. We are not against the Government, but we want the
officers to treat us all alike. We do not want to break one of
the Queen's laws, and we want just one more law, the treaty.
I know the people at Kincolith want a treaty too. I heard
them ask Mr. Collison to write a letter to Dr. Powell, telling
hiin they wanted a treaty. Mr. Collison replied, "He would
not; that if he wrote it he would be. hanged," and so he
frightened the people ; but they want a treaty.

These words are true, and I hope. the -good. chiefs will listen
to us, and give us what is right in the sight of the great God.

DAVID MCKAY.

ELIZABETH SAVAGE,
LOI. Witnesà.

Cojy
STATEMENT OF CHIEF ARTHUR CALDER.

GREENVILLE, N&As RIVER, Nov. 27th, 1888.

I, Arthur Calder, declare that I went with David McKay
and William Jeffries, ahd I heard David ask Mr. Moffat about
the map at Kincolith Church Mission; and he'asked if Dr.
Powell sent.it; and Iheard Mr. Moffat say that it was'not sent
to them at all; and then Mr. Green, the surveyor, said, too,
that the map was not sent them, for they had not made one,
and that no Indian had received one. I also heard them both
declare that if Kincolith had a map, some white man had made
it ; that it did not go from Powell to Kincolith.

ARTHUR CALDER.

ELIZABETH SAVAGE,
Witness.

Copy.]
STATEMENT OF CHARLES RUSS (As INbIAN).

NAAs RIVER, B.C., Nov. 27th, 188é.

I want to say that we, the Indians of Naas River, are not
satisfied about our land, because the officers of the Government
say the land is not ours. Before the white men came here, we
had the land and said it was ours; and, when the white men
did come, we still continued to say, this is our land. It is just
the last few years thatthe Government said that the lands did
not belong to us: but we did not believe this; and, when Mr.
Cornwall and Mr. Planta, Cominissioners, came, we asked thera
to make a treaty with us, and so we would have the land we
need for our own. and the Government have the other Dart.
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book, and said for twenty years we had had no ]and. This was
the first time we heard this from the mouth of the officers of the
Government, and this surprised us alj Al the chiefs were
troubled at this; and, fromn all this our people want a treaty.
because they never saw such a thing before. 'We have all our
old traditions about the laws of the past, but we have no storv
like this of one people taking the land from another without
an agreement. So, if the white chiefs want our land, we ask
them to go by the Queen's law and make a treaty with us. We
have many times asked Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly for what
we wanted; but they did not do it. Wehave told them what
troubled us, and what would give us peace; but they take no
notice of us. We know it is not us against them; but they
are very mueh against us; and want to take the land from us
that always belonged to our forefathers. I know that *Dr.
Powell does not take care of us, for I was sent by the Indians,
with Chief Mountain, to Victoria, to go and talk to him about
our troubles. I paid my way on the steamer, and Mountain
and I went, with Mr. Crosby and Mr. Green, to talk to Dr.
Powell. He told us another day he would see- us and answer
us, but he did not hear our other words ; and, after a long time,
we returned home without any answer; and so we know that
he did not want to assist us.

And I want to say, Mr. O'Rielly deceived us in 1881. When
he first came, he told us that he would set apart one chain at
Fishery Bay as a commonage, on the bank of the river, for all
to fish on; and, b'ack of that, one chain deep, he gave to us,
"the residents of Lach-al-tsap." But, since then, he has changed
his word, we hear; but, when he was here in August last, we
told him his words to us, and that -it was our land, and that he
admitted this in his report~of 1881; and that he was thé only
one who told us it should be ours. He did not make any
answer to these words. We know that Dr. Powell and Mr.
O'Reilly are troubled in their hearts; they are against us, and
we do not want them to be the judges of who is wrong. Let
the Governihent judge between us and them as to who is wrong.
These are the men who judged Mr. Duncan, and, by their
unfairness, sent so many of our friends out of the country.

Do not believe that we are the onlv people who are troubled
about this land; Kincolith people, Church Mission, mouth of
the Naas, are troubled very much, too. Their teachers tell them
they will receive special favors if they abide by Dr. Powell and
judge O'Reilly's deçisions; but it shows how troubled they are
when they went after and took the Fish Commissioner, and
wanted hira to give up the money from thé boat fisheries, be-
cause the water and the land belonged to them, they said. . We
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have not done this; but with my mouth I tell you we want a
treaty to the lands that the great God gave to our forefathers.

The Commission, a year last fall, promised we should
have an answer to our words that they wrote down, but it
never comes. These my words.are true.

His

Signed, CHARLES X RUss.

ELIZABETH SAVAGE, Mark.

Witness.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE A GIBSON (AN INDIAN).

NA As RIVER, B.C.,-Nov, 19th, 1888.

We know the sons fathers owned this land.- God gave it to
them when He made them, and they gave it to us, so we know
it b*ongs to us, for we never gave it away, and never sold it.
And I cannot think how the white Government says our land
belongs to themig I do not know who gave it to them. All the
things that our' forefathers had we know, and they told us
what they s6ld, and whak they did not sell, and they never told
us they sold the land, and so we know they did not. I know
it belongs to our forefathers, they never gave it to the white
men, and so it is ours to-day. So I am surprisedthat Mr.
O'Reilly, who came here this August, said that we were calling
ours which ~belonged to the Queen. That the land -did not
belong to us. We are not against the Government in saying
this. We are not in rebellion, but we want the Government to
do right with us. We have taken the Queen's flag over us, and
honor it. We have taken the Queen's law to guide us, but
when we took the flag and the laws we never had a little
thought thatip so doing we were giving away our land. And
all the officers .of the Government told us that our property
would be protected. Mr. O'Reilly came in 1881 to lay off re-
serves, and we were surprised at this; and he measured off just
a small piece' which he-said was for us: but it was too small,
not large enough for us, not enough for us to live on, only a
little from our houses; we told how much we wanted, but he
only shook his head. Only a small part of what he measured
is good. My heart is sick, and so are all our people, because
the land is so large outside of what he measured for usand our
berry trees, our salmon streams, and our hunting grounds, are
in this land that is taken from us. These are not in what Mr.
O'Reilly measured for us. We are not like white people who
grow their food near their houses; our land will not grow wheat
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or oats, or barley. We have to ,set trapsl catch the
fisher, and the lynx, and the martin, and to shoo bear, and
to gather berries, and we have to use a lot of conitry to do
this, and the animals get fewer each year. We wana a}i these
put right for us so we can live. Mr. O'Reilly, when he first
came here, ineasured off the land he said was for us, but out
hearts were not satisfied then, and they are not satisfied now.
And Mr. O'Reilly measured off our fishing ground at Stony
Point (Fishery Bay Reserve No. 10). We had always camped
there the summer months long before Mr. O'Reilly came. He
came and saw us there, and .said he reserved one chain deep
along the front for a commonage, and back of that he said it
was for us the residents of Lach-al-tsap (Greenville), but after-
wards he changed his word, and said he did not give it to us.
And so-my heart is troubled. I don't think his·word is good
because he ha two words. I also saw the map at Kincolith
which was sent them by Dr. Powell, to show the Kincolith
Indians their reserves, and in this map was included the land
at Stony Point where we camp, and which Mr. O'Reilly said
he reserved for us. We sent to Dr. Powell for a map, but he
would not give us one. I and the people see that Dr. Powell
and Mr. O'Reilly treat the Kincolith Indians different from
what he does us. I saw the same thing at Metlakahtla when
Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly treated Mr. Duncan different fron
what .he treated Bishop Ridley, and he did it till Mr. Duncan's
Indians were driven out of the country; and we do not like to
see the same thing being done by him on the Naas. I want to
see the Government do right by us, and the officers to treat us
all alike, not help one village different from another, and then
we shall have confidence in their work. We want sufficient
land for ourselves, to be our own; we do not want it as a reserve;
and give us a treaty, and something for the outside, our hearts
will then be satisfied.

TIMOTHY DERRICK, GEORGE A. GIBSON.

Witness to Signature.

Copy.] STATEMENT OF CHIEF SCABAN.

Kir-LACH-DAMUX, NAAs R1vER, B.C.,

Nov. 13th, 1888.

My heart is very sick because the white man want to take
our land away from us, aîd do not make a strong promise to
us on paper. We want a treaty, and want the Government to
give us something for~oùr land. God gave us the land, and we
picked our berries, got our furs, made our houses, and made our
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canoes; all our living came off of tl'is land, and out of, this

water, and now our hearts are made sick by the white cÈiefs

takinc nea4ly aIl our land away froma us. We do not want xa

reser ve if we do not have a treaty, for the reserve is not largê,

enough for us to live on. Our berries and hunting grounds are

not:lp te reserves. 'Mr. O'Reilly did not do right ; when he

was here he said he would take away my power and give it to

another man. Mr. O'Reilly did not make me chief of Kit-lach-

damux; my power came from my forefathers, and all in the

village acknowledge that I am their chief, but because I did

not want our land surveyed he said he would take my power

away and give it to some one else. God gave us a good survey

when he gave us the land, and we do not want Mr. OYReilly to

survey the land unless the Government make a treaty with u,

and give us a present for our land. God tmade, this land, apd

then put us on it, so we know it is ours. We do not wan' an

Indian agent; he does not know our language or our héarts,

and agents speak to bad white men who hate the Indians, and

the agent believes all the bad words he hears. The whjte mans

law is no one to cut timber without paying the Government.

We do not have. good timber on our reserve, but we have no

money to pay for cutting trees down. When Dr. Powell came

to my village a long time ago he spoke good words, but his

words turned to smoke. I gave him some old tings-stoes,

etc., because he asked me for them, and he promised me ha

would leave the money down at Mr. Croasdaile s for me, and

when I would go down the river I would get it. But I went

for it, but Mr. Croasdaile said Dr. Powell did not leave>auy

money for me.
We love the Queen, and use her flag and obey her law, but

we did not understand that in doing this she would take our

land away from us for nothing. I am getting old, and I want

to see my people satisfied and happy before I die, so I beg the

goôd chiefs to listen to my heart. I want to be friendly with

all the white people, and so I want the Queen to make a treaty

with us, and we will know what the Government will do for

us, and we will make a strong promise and never break it, for

God sees us.
His

ELIZABETH SAVAGE, CHIEF X SCABAN.

Witnss.Mark.

Per JONATHAN MEAR.



STATEMENT OF CHIEF NESS-PASH.

GREENVILLE, NAAs RIVER, B.O.,

November 16th, 1888.

.I want to say that I and all my people are very much
troubled about our lands. Thus the Government takes it away
from us without asking us, and without giving us anything in
return. The great God gave this$rnd to our forefathers, and
they lived here and made theirliving from the land,~ out of the
woods and rivers; and now Mr. O'Reilly comes and takes away
nearly all our land, leaving us only a little to die on. We.want
a strong word made about our. land, and we want the Govern-
ment to give us something for the land we give the Queen, and
we want to keep plenty of land to live on. The land is not
good like the land at Yictoria; a little there will do .for many
people, but not so here; only a few potatoes grow, and we have
to go over a large piece of this rough land for berries,,and
skins, so wé can buy flour, tea, and sugar.. And a long time
ago we had many wild animals in the wood, but they are few
now, and get.fewer each year since the white man came. And
then ny heart is troubled because-Mr. O'Reilly.said the land at!
Fishery Baygwas reserved for us, al~but: ne chain along the
bank of the river, and now he turns his wordL last August he
was at Fishery Bay, and we toldhim the words hé spoke 'to us
before, and asked hiùPíf he did speak those words to us or not.
And he did not answer a word. We do not want -an Indian
agent until we make a treaty with the Government.

Ris
A. E. GREEN, CHJEF x NESs-PASÈ.

Witnes. -- Mark.

Copy.]
STATEMENT'OF CHIEF CLAY-TSAH.

GREENVILLE, NAAS RIVER, B.C.,

November t18th, 1888.

I and my people held the things our fathers put in our
hands, and it is killing me-to-have our land taken out of our
hands for nothing. Weknow so many white people are against
us, and some of the teachers trying to deceive the people, and
they tell us we must not speak; and the Church of England
people say that they have all the river now, and we are not to
have any.

Fishery Bay Resérve, No. 10, Mr. O'Reilly promised to us,
with his own lips, when he first came and found us liviny on it,

69
Copy.]
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but the Kincolith people now say Mr. O'Reilly has taken it
away igom us, and given it to them. The Kincolith people
know. that Fishery Bay belonged always to us, and this is seen
to-day by the name it bears, for it is called " Ness-use's land ;"

no one doubts this, and Ness-use does not live at Kineolith, his
descendants all live at Lach-al-tsap Mission. It is not because.
the Kincolith people need the place, but because of their pride
They have Red Cliffs and -Canaan for fisbing reserves, good
ones, and 'much nearer to their village than Fishery .Bay, but
they did -not want to fish, but to -trouble us. They want to
prevent the Port Simpson Indians, and also the Kit-tick-shens,
from fishing on this river. We do do not want this, we want
all to fish here the food God has sent us. We are surprised
that the Kincolith people do this, for God's Word should make
us love each other.. We want the land Mr. 0'Reilly promised
us; andwe want a treaty, so there will not be any more trouble
about our land.

I want to say that Kincolith is only a small village, about
two hundred persons, and up the river there are three large
villages, and many chiefs who watch the land all the time, and
we want peace in our hearts. We do not name ourselves chiefs,
we have been chiefs a long long time, and the power came from
our forefathers. And Mr. Green is witness to us, and knowes
who are chiefs, f.or he !has lived here a long time,and knows
our language. 'f told Mr. O'Reilly when he came where we
wanted our reserves to begin and where to end. We hay/not
changed our word; we want that because we need it to live on,
and then we want a strong word from the Government, and a
present for the land we give over to the white Government.

His
G. A. GIBsON, CHIEF x CLAY-TSAH.

Witnes8. Mark.

STATEMENT OF CIIEF TAT-CA-KAK.

GREENVILLE, NA"s-RIVER,

November 7th, 1888.

I wish to say that every mountain and every siãrm has its
name in our language, and every piece of country here is
known by the name-our forefathers gave them. And we are
not satisfied with Mr. O'Reilly coming and measuring off our
land. We do not understand how he comes to get this power
to cut up our land without our being willing. When Mr.
O'Reilly came we told him how much land we wanted, but he
would not do what we asked. God gave this land to our
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fathers a long time ,ago, and they made gardens and made
homes, and then when they died théy gave them to us. And
strange Indians of other tribes who came here, wanting to fish
the " oolachans," always asked our fathers for the privilege to
comé and fish here and always paid something for it. So this
shows that all recognize that this belonged to us, and we have
never been willing that our land should be surveyed. We did
not wan't in 1881, when Mr. O'Reilly first came, and this last
August when he came again to enlarge his grant we did not
want it, for I asked him for a paper with an agreement on-a
strong paper, so-we can know that we aee still to have our land
outside of the little bits he wants to leave us with. We know
the white man would not feel well if -we went and took away
their property for nothing, and so I, the other chiefs and all
my people do not want the white government to take away our
land. It makes us trouble ?every day. It has troubled our
friends so much that many hundreds have gone into Alaska,
and we are sorry to loose our friends in this way.

I am greatly surprised, because Judge O'Reilly had two
words when he was here. In the Fall of 1881, I was at Fishery
Bay (Reserve No. 10), and Mr. O'Reilly told me that one chain
deep along the bank of the river was to be set apart for all
Indians to fish, and the other land back of the one chain was
for the residents of Greenville (Lach-al-tsap) then a few
months after he said it did not belong to us. I told hum this
to his face last August and asked him if he did not speak these
words to us in 1881, and he would not give us any answer. I
also know that Dr. Powell and Mr. O'Reilly sent a map to the
Kincolith Indians at the Church Mission, but when we sent for
one to show our land, they would not send. us one. It troubles
usibecause they always make a difference between us and the
Ihdians of the other mission. I declare these words to be my
own and to be true.

His
TAT-CA-KAKS. X

Mark.

E. SAVAGE,
Witness.

Copy.]

STATEMENT OF JOB CALDER.

NAAs RIVER, B.C., Novernber 26th. 1888.

My name-was Nouse. " I was chief at the village of Kit-wan-
silh., I have been baptized, and my name is now Job Calder.
My wife is named Victoria. She is the head of the whole Naas
nation; all chiefs and people know this, and she holds the
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power in her hands. A long time ago we were troubled by
whiskey And war among our own people. One chief would
want to get above another, and so would fight and would take
slaves; and we were afraid to sleep; but the missionaries came
and opened God's word to us, and told us the w'hisky was
wrong, and that it was wrong lor us to fight and kill each
other. Mr. Duncan stopped the whisky among us, and Mr.
Green and Mr. Crosby told us God's love, and we stopped
fighting, and had peace in our hearts, and could sleep tilR we
saw the. white men take our gardens and our land, and then
when Mr. Davie said we did not have an inch of land, this

'troubled us, for the land belonged to our fathers, and they left
it to us, and we use it. We do not want the Government to
take it from us. Mr. O'Reilly came here twice, but he would
not give ear to our words; he wants to take away nearly all
our land. We want it larger, and then we want a strong paper
that the land is ours, and a strong paper and a present for the
land outside-the land the Queen will then have. We want a
present if it is only a few matches; something to make our
hearts feel right' when we give up a lot of our land. We
showed Mr. O'Reilly what we wanted, but he took no notice.
We have written Dr. Powell; we have petitioned the House of
Commons, but no notice is taken of our words. A comnittee
came, Mr. Cornwall and Mr. Planta, and. heard our words and
wrote them down, and they told us that they could not answer
our words, but when our words had been put before the Govern-
ment, the Government would send us an answer. They told us
to wait for the answer. We have waited over a ydar, but no
answer came.

I. want to say that the Government does not help us the
same as it helps other people. I was living at Kit-wan-silh,
was one of. the chiefs of that village. Mr. Green brought the
Gospel to our village and I accepted it, and opened my bouse
for preaching,4and a day-school was taught in it for two years,
and then I thought I would take my large house down and
make it smaller. Mr. Green promised to help me. When we got
the roof off and began to put up the new foundation, those
who were opposed to the G spel came and stopped us by force,
and when they were taked before the magistrate, they pro-
mised to leave it to Dr. Powell, and if he said I could build my
house they would not trouble me again. The reason they gave
for stopping me was, that I had become a Christian, so ,they
wanted me to leave the village, and did not want the young
men to have a house to have school in and preaching. But Dr.
Powell answered that I could not put up-my house if the people
(a majority) did not want it. So I left the village and moved
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to Greenville, and for two years' there was no house for school
or church in that village.

Mr. O'Reilly has broken his own word that he spoke to all,
of us in 1881. He told us he gave Fisbery Bay land to us back
of the one chain commonage. He told us before all the people,
and we believed him; later, he says, he did not give it to us.
He came here in August last, and we asked him -if he did not
tell us in 1881 that it was ours, and he wôuld not answer. We
were living'on that land when he came in 1881, and also when
he came last August. He broke his word to us. This Fishery
camp is only three miles from Greenville, and it is eighteen
miles from Kincolith, and the Kincolith people have two other
reserves, Canaan and Red Cliffs, We wanted the land settled
before we have an Indian agent here; bût when we have a
treaty, then are we willing to have the Indian agent bere, but
not till then. These my words are all true, God knows.

(Signed) JOB CALDER.

ELIZABETH SAVAGE,
Witness.

Copy.]

LETTER HANDED TO THE COMMISSONERS ON

THEIR ARRIVAL AT PORT SIMPSON.

To the.MEMBERS OF THE LAND COMMISSION.

81E8,

We are pleased to meet you, for we have looked forward
to your coiming as a peaceable settlement of what has been a
great trouble to us for years. It has made our hearts bleed to
be treated as we have been about our land, the inheritance
which God gave to our fathers, and it was for this reason we
sent three of our members to Ottawa, in 1885, to meet Sir John
A. Macdonald. i'He promised us in fair words we should have
ývhat we needed, but nothing was done.

The servants of the Governme'nt sent here have never treat'ed
us like ien. Mr. O'Reilly came here in 1881, without suf-
ficient notice to our people, and hence there were not many
home, and when he met us he would not give time for our
chiefs to speak, nor listen to our wants, but went on, and, as he
says, laid out reserves, although we protested in writing against
it. Now, we want you to see what he has done. He has taken
twelve houses of Chief Legaic's tribe, and given them to the

Hudson's Bay Company; and altbough we sent letters to Dr.
Powell and to the Hudson's Bay Company against it, no notice
was taken of it, and we were told that the Company's line com-
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mnenced at Legaic's pole. Now, if you look at this, you will see
that it is not just, and as'the Company could take plenty of
land to the east, up the harbor, we cannot tell, why they wish
to enclose our bouses on their land; and we were told by Dr.
Powell when he visited us that the Hudson's Bay Company's
land-would not come more than a few feet west, of their fence.

Then all at once we found a man here surveying for the
Government; he said, all round the north-east side of the har-
bor, and we were told that this land had all been claimed by
white chiefs in Victoria, and they said they had bought it from
the Government, and this before our claim had been settled.
We wrote about this, but received no reply.-

In the fall of 1883, Dr. Powell came up in a war-ship to
Metlakahtla, but we think he was ashamed to come up here, for
his words to us had all been broken, so he sent Mr. McKay as
agent. He met us and listened kindly to our trouble, and said
our clairi was just. We said, if he would go and lay it before
the Government and get it settled, we should then be glad to
have him come back. He went away and never came back,
and we thought it was becatise he wished to carry out our
wishes that he was not allowed to come back.

And again a war-ship came to Metlakahtla, and we were told
that the chief of the Government, Mr. Davie, said that not one
inch of ground belonged to the Tsimpsheans, and then you
know there was trouble at Metlakahtla about the two acres bn
Mission Point. All this sending of war-ships, and putting
Metlakahtla people in jail, and the way we were treated about
our land, caused us great trouble, and made our hearts weak.
Our Council, that had for years kept the 'roads in good order,
and built bridges, and endeavored to repress immorality among
our people, was put down by Judge Elliott, who said we were
no Council, and now you see our village is in a bad state, and
our young people who once had great respect for the village

-~ Coun7cil, have none now. We have been put down and
discouraged by those who should have encouraged and helped
us. But we have been k4pt by our teachers and our profession
oP religion from breaking the laws, as they have always
encouraged'us to believe that we should have our rights.

When Mr. Jemmet came to survey on the Naas, we sent him
a letter protesting against his work until we had our land
matter settled; but he went on, and we are told that our
fishing stations. which he marked off, are but one chain in depth
from the water's edge, and on this we were tobe- allowed to
build no bouses. This seemed very strange to us; for here our
fathers used to live two or three months of the year, and we
had large bouses on this ground long before Mr. O'Reilly and
JE7fâmet were born. This made us feel sore and angry, and



had we been as we once were, we should have been tempted to
fight ; but no, we prayed to God to help us and waited, and now
we do hope that you will see that we have at least two chains'
width in our fishing claims on the Naas. All the Upper Naas
people will agree to this,.as they know it is our just right.

When Mr. Jemmet came here to:our own village and com-
menced to ,survey, and took the line from Legaic's pole, we
protested against it, and called him to a large meeting, and told
him we did not wish him to go on with the survey. He said
he would send our words to the proper quarter, and the matter
would be atended to. In the meantime he went on with his
work, and i%,iever heard that any notice was taken of our
protest.

Feeling that all our attempts to get a hearing had failed, and
that some of our people were becoming exasperated, and desir-
ing to prevent an outbreak, we decided to make one more effort;
and calling a large meeting last January, we appointed a depu-
tation, consisting of our missidnary and two men of our tribes,
to go at once to Victoria in~company with Mr. Green and some
Naas chiefs, to wait upon the Government.' Though, in the
midst of a'great storm, our deputation jroeeeded,without delay
to Victoria, when, strange to say, the Government did not wish
to meet the missionaries, and would not allow them to be pres-
ent at their interview with the Indians. We have not for-
gotten that yet., The Government promised that a Land
Commission should be sent toput our land matters right. We
expected it heré in the spring, but instead of that, we were sur-
prised in the early summer by the arrival of Mr. Tuck and a
party of men to go on with the survey. A meeting was called
of the few people at home, and we\protested against hirsur-
veying the land. Mr. Tuck said, in repiy, that he could not
stop his work, but he promised that oîr words should be sent
to tfe Government. And now you have"come, we ask you to
be good enough to take time to listen to our wishes, and hear
the words of our chiefs; and we do hope that your visit will be
the means of bringing peace and confidence toòour hearts again.
We welcome yon to our village, and will do all we can to inake
your stay here pleasant and happy. And do not feel sorry if
we have to say some words you do-not like to hear.

We suppose you have all the papers concerning our land
question, and our letters of protest before you, but we'thought
it well to call your attention, by this letter, to some of the cir-
cumstances of our grievance. As you are, no doubt, aware the
Government have never had' to send a war-ship to us, and
although a judge lives here, he would have no work to do were
it not that the Government has given the Hudson's Bay Com-
pany license to sell liquor, and bad white men come here and
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get drunk, and then give it to.our people. :,This has given us

great trouble. For many years the -Hludson's Bay Company-

sold no liquor here, and our young men did not dare to

trouble our wives and daughters; butwe fear for all this now.

This is aside from the laend question,.with which you come to

deal, but it is a thing that troubles us mueb, and we hope you

will do something to have it put away from ourimidst.

At your pleasure, we will cal a publie meeting. Wei have

had letters-from the Government to tell us of your coming, and

we hope yon will find time to meet us before you go tNaas,

as a large number of our men have been waiting your commg,

and would like to get away soon.

On behalf of the people of Port Simpson.
Their Marks.

(Signed); PAUL LEGAIc. x
DÂvu> SWANsON. x
ÂLBERT MCMILLAN: X

WILLIAM KELLY. X

PoRT SIMPSON, Oct 8th, 1887.
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SUPPLÉMENTARY .STATEMENT OF REV. T. CROSBY.

1. I was the first resident Methodist Missionary on the north-
west coast of British Columbia. I first went to Fort Simpson
in June, 1874, where I have since resided; and as Chairman of
the Fort Simpson District of Methodist Missions, which embraces
the north-west coast above Queen Charlotte Sound, also the
Naas and Skeena Rivers, and Queen Charlotte Islands, I have
from time to time visited the Indians of -that District during
that period.

2. The Bella Coola, Hiletsuck,Hydah andTsimpshean Indians
who occupy that, district, and who are set down in the Report
of the Department of Indian -Affairs for 1888 (p. 317), at
10,000, do not really nuinber more than 7,000. Of these, about
1,000 are under the instruction of the missionaries of the Church
of England, and the remainder (with few exceptions), about
6,000, under the instruction of the Methodist missionaries.

.3. In that district "the number of resident whites-men,
women and children-is only about 150. About one half of these
aremissionaries, teachers and membersof their families; the:other
half being composed of Government and Hudson Bay offcials,
traders and cannery men, and members of their families.

4. As to the charges against our missionaries of disloyalty
and inciting their people against theGovernment officials, and

against the Indian Act, and receiving an Indian agent, so freely
made in various official documents, I am able to give these a
most unqualified denial. I am firmly convinced that it bas
been only through the loyal teaching and active exertions and
peaceful influence of our missionaries that the Indians have
been kept quiet under the indignities and-unfair treatment to
which they have been subjected; so that our Indians have
never been guilty of any violence or disturbance, or occasioned
any trouble to either Government, but on the contrary bave
given them their assistance, 'which cannot be said of other
Indians in that district who are unduly favored by the officials,
and lauded by them at the expense of.our Indians. ,

5. The prejudice on the part of a number of our Indiôns
against coming under the Indian Act or an Indian agent, is due
in part to their having -observed that numbers of Indians who,
are under an agent, are much worse off than themselves, and
continue their heathen praétices; and in lpart to the offensive
and imperious manner in which they have been treated by most
of the Government officials who have ýcome in contact with
them, and also to the fact that their appeals and requests have,
as a rule, met with no response, even when answers have been
promised them.

T. CRosBY.
Toaoaro, April, 1889.


